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(dollars in thousands, Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
except for per share information) 2001 2000 1999

Total revenues $2,643,044 $2,432,260 $1,678,870

Gross profit 487,643 471,879 370,828

Depreciation and amortization 63,545 56,062 42,798

Income from operations 55,193 76,031 65,178

Interest expense 58,731 52,329 41,280

Net income (loss) (2,656) 13,996 10,416

Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic $ (0.15) $ 0.77 $ 0.45

Diluted (0.15) 0.74 0.41

Comparable store sales growth:

Merchandise (0.2)% 7.5% 9.6%

Gasoline gallons (3.8)% (2.4)% 5.9%

Average sales per store:

Merchandise sales $ 731.0 $ 713.8 $ 666.4

Gasoline gallons (in thousands) 890.4 856.9 834.8

EBITDA $ 123,509 $ 131,248 $ 107,976

Store count, end of year 1,324 1,313 1,215

The Pantry, Inc. is the leading

convenience store operator in the

southeastern United States and the

second largest independently oper-

ated convenience store chain in the

country. The Company currently

operates 1,324 stores in suburban

areas of rapidly growing markets,

coastal/resort areas and smaller

towns located in Florida, North

Carolina, South Carolina, Georgia,

Mississippi, Kentucky, Virginia,

Indiana, Tennessee and Louisiana.
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Dear Shareholder,

While fiscal 2001 was a challenging year for The Pantry, we remained focused on our long-
term goal of being the best convenience store chain in the Southeastern United States.
Despite unfavorable market conditions during the year, we took significant steps to streamline
our processes, enhance our efficiency and direct our resources toward strengthening our oper-
ations across the board.

These actions have not only allowed us to maintain our leadership position in our primary
markets, they have also positioned us to make even greater strides as we go forward. In short,
throughout fiscal 2001, our focus was to implement “Strategic Moves,” which we are confident
will result in a “Stronger Future” for our Company.

Financial Performance

For fiscal 2001, the Company reported net income before restructuring and unusual charges of
$2.9 million compared to net earnings of $14.0 million in fiscal year 2000. Before restructuring
and unusual charges, earnings per diluted share were $0.16 versus $0.74 in fiscal year 2000.
Including these charges, net loss was $2.7 million, or a loss per share of $0.15. Total revenues
for the year were $2.6 billion, up 8.7% from fiscal year 2000. Merchandise revenues and gasoline
revenues increased 6.7% and 10.4%, respectively. Fiscal year 2001 EBITDA was $123.5 million
compared to $131.2 million recorded in fiscal year 2000.

In fiscal 2001, we took significant steps to streamline our processes, enhance our efficiency and direct our

resources toward strengthening our operations across the board. We are certain that these strategic moves will

result in a stronger future for our Company.

Our results for the year were impacted by several factors including the ongoing and often dra-
matic increase in the wholesale price of gasoline and increased competition in selected markets.
In addition, the economic downturn in fiscal 2001 led to a significant decline in tourism at
resort locations in the Southeast such as Myrtle Beach, Hilton Head, Jacksonville and the
greater Orlando area, all markets in which we have a strong presence. Travel to these, and
other destinations throughout the Southeast, was further aggravated by the tragic events of
September 11. While these factors were clearly out of our control, we did all we could to
effectively manage our operations and are proud of the progress we did make in several key areas.

A Focused Strategy

In fiscal 2001, we focused our attention on honing our strategy and implementing initiatives
that corresponded to the changes that we have witnessed in our industry and in the economy.
As a result, we made important adjustments aimed at optimizing our resources and streamlining
our operations throughout our existing store network.

One significant shift was in our acquisition plan. While we still view our selective acquisition
program to be a core component of our longer-term growth strategy, we greatly curtailed our
acquisitions in fiscal 2001, given prevailing economic and market conditions.

L E T T E R  T O  O U R  S H A R E H O L D E R S



For the year, we acquired 45 new stores, ending the year with 1,324 stores. These acquisitions
were in line with our goal of enhancing our position in existing markets and extending our
reach into fast-growing contiguous markets. Not only did the addition of these locations
strengthen our position in Mississippi, North Carolina and Virginia, they established a presence
for The Pantry in the state of Louisiana, an important achievement.

In f iscal 2001, we also focused on increasing eff iciency throughout our business. These
efforts centered on the reduction of operating expenses and the implementation of significant
technology enhancements.

At the corporate level, we completed our restructuring plan, centralizing and strengthening
our administrative capabilities at our Sanford, North Carolina headquarters. As part of this
effort, we consolidated our Florida support center, reducing existing overlaps and duplicative
functions. These actions are expected to lower operating expenses by approximately $5 million
on an annualized basis. In addition, we instituted other cost-cutting initiatives aimed at further
strengthening the bottom line. Important among these was the introduction of an automated
repair and maintenance system as well as a program for tracking requests, status and completion.
These measures already allowed us to reduce costs by more than $400,000 for this year to date
when measured against the expenditures of the last fiscal year. We anticipate they will result in
even greater costs savings going forward.

The technology initiatives we implemented during the year also enabled us to enhance our
operating performance. In fiscal 2001, we introduced the MPSI 95 Retail Explorer system, 

a sophisticated tool for market mapping and competitor analysis. This system allows us to
improve our understanding of the markets we serve and is an important tool for helping 
us determine where best to apply our resources in order to better meet the needs of 
our customers.

In addition, we rolled out several in-store systems aimed at growing our merchandise sales and
margins. These included enhancing our store reporting and accounting system, a cigarette
inventory and ordering system, Orion, and a fast-food menu costing and margin calculation
system, Quick Servant. These systems have allowed us to better monitor sales levels, significantly
reduce reporting errors at the store level, ensure our stores are well stocked, and help us to
strengthen our margins, especially in the area of food service.

In our gasoline operations, we developed a more effective pricing and reporting strategy
through the introduction of two state-of-the-art systems. During the year, we completed the
implementation of our gasoline reporting, pricing and competitive retail tracking system,
GPS, and introduced Telafuel, a comprehensive gasoline monitoring and inventory system. In
addition to achieving enhanced efficiency in this area, through these initiatives, during the
second half of the year, we also reported significant comparable store gallon improvements,
even in light of ongoing economic challenges and volatility in the gasoline market.
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During the year, we focused on increasing efficiency throughout our business. These efforts centered on the reduc-

tion of operating expenses and the implementation of significant technology initiatives that have helped the

Company to enhance performance in our stores and at our pumps.



Outlook for the Future

As we look ahead to fiscal 2002, there is uncertainly as to when we will see an upturn or to
what degree the geopolitical realities of today will impact our economy. What we are confi-
dent of, however, is that the actions we have taken during the year position us to enhance our
performance and strengthen our results once operating conditions improve.

Going forward, we will continue our focus on streamlining our business and leveraging our
technology investments in order to more closely monitor performance throughout all of our
locations. While we do not expect that market conditions will allow us to pursue an aggres-
sive acquisition strategy in the year ahead, we do anticipate that these actions will make us
more competitive than ever and allow us to grow our business through increased traffic at our
pumps and in our stores.

In closing, we would like to thank our employees for their continued hard work and com-
mitment to providing the best service in the industry. It is their dedication that has enabled us
to meet the challenges of the past year. We would also like to acknowledge the ongoing sup-
port of our shareholders and customers as we reaffirm our resolve to provide you with greater
value in the future. We look forward to the year ahead and will update you on our progress.

Looking to the future, The Pantry will continue to 

focus on streaming its operations and leveraging its

technology investments to more closely monitor 

performance, further enhance operating efficiency,

and ensure that the Company is well positioned to

deliver even stronger results in the years ahead.
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Peter J. Sodini
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Strategic Moves

The Pantry’s focus in fiscal 2001 was on implementing a series of strategic moves aimed at
enhancing operating efficiency and strengthening performance at the corporate level and
throughout the Company’s 1,324 stores in the Southeastern United States.

Despite challenges facing the industry, including unprecedented volatility in the wholesale
price of gasoline, and an overall decline in the economy, which impacted levels of consumer
spending, The Pantry made important progress during the year by redirecting its strategy and
its resources.

While the Company has pursued an aggressive store growth program over the past five years,
economic conditions in fiscal 2001 impacted its strategy and drove its decision to significantly
slow the pace of its acquisition plans. For the year, the Company acquired 45 locations,
opened two new stores and closed 36 locations. Important among this year’s acquisitions was
the addition of 26 stores operating under the Fast Lane banner. Eighteen of these stores were
located in Mississippi and the remainder in Louisiana. The Company also acquired 11 stores
from the East Coast Oil Corporation, ten of which were located in North Carolina and one
in Virginia. These acquisitions strengthened the Company’s presence in existing markets and
extended its geographic reach.

A  Y E A R  O F  P R O G R E S S
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The addition of eight locations in the state of Louisiana was especially significant. Not only did
this mark The Pantry’s entrance into that state, it was also an important step in the Company’s
long-term goal of establishing a leadership position in fast-growing contiguous markets.

Having completed these acquisitions early in fiscal 2001, the Company used the remainder of
the year as an opportunity to further develop and strengthen its internal systems. The Pantry
is confident that this strategy and the steps that it has taken will allow it to more effectively
capitalize on significant opportunities for growth in the highly fragmented convenience store
industry in the Southeast, once market conditions improve.

Focused on Efficiency

With a sharp focus on efficiency and the prudent use of cash, The Pantry continued to take
actions in fiscal 2001 aimed at strengthening its operations at every level. Primarily, these
efforts focused on implementing a series of technology-based initiatives and cost-cutting
measures throughout its stores and at its headquarters. While these initiatives have already
begun to help strengthen the Company’s performance, and allowed it to meet the challenges of
fiscal 2001, The Pantry anticipates that they will be even more meaningful in the year ahead.

With a sharp focus on efficiency and the prudent use of cash, The Pantry took the necessary steps in fiscal 2001 

to strengthen its operations at the corporate level as well as throughout its vast store network, which has grown 

to include 1,324 locations.



…In Merchandising

Throughout fiscal 2001, the Company continued its commitment to providing customers
with the most convenient shopping experience in the Southeast as well as access to a selection
of branded products and quality services that are second to none.

In doing so, The Pantry focused on better monitoring inventory levels and tracking customer
preferences through its state-of-the-art accounting and management system, which was rolled
out last year through the entire store network. The Company effectively refined and adjusted
merchandise mix and selection, ensuring that items in stock ref lected the demands of its
customers throughout the diverse markets in which it operates. These actions resulted in a
6.7% increase in merchandise revenue for the year.

In addition, the Company worked to strengthen its reporting systems. In fiscal 2001, The
Pantry introduced its first web-based reporting and store audit system. This system not only
helps to reduce errors at the store level through the automation of accounting and audit func-
tions, it can also be used as a training tool, helping managers review performance related to
inventory and cash control and to utilize this information to make their stores more profitable.

Other important systems were also introduced during the year. The Company began the roll
out of Orion, a new cigarette inventory and tracking system, which can now be found in 25%
of its stores. Orion fully automates the process of monitoring and reordering tobacco products,
ensuring store locations are always stocked with the fastest-selling items on the shelf.

The Pantry continues to provide its customers the greatest

range of competitively priced merchandise of any 

convenience store chain in the Southeastern United States

including the most recognized names in snack foods, 

soft drinks, beer and cigarettes. In addition, the Company

also offers customers a large fresh food offering and

fresh coffee that is ground and brewed on site.
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The Company also continued the development of its ancillary services, adding pre-paid cellular
phone cards to its on-site services, which include lottery operations, money orders, pay
telephones and car washes. For the year, ancillary services in total accounted for $21.7 million
in commission revenues, net of expenses, a significant contribution to the bottom line.

Another goal in fiscal 2001 was to achieve growth and strengthen margins in the Company’s
food service program, which consists of 17 nationally branded food franchises that are available
in 99 of The Pantry’s stores as well as a broad range of proprietary hot food service programs
found in 104 of its locations.

In meeting this goal, the Company rolled out Quick Servant, which monitors, analyzes and
compares a number of important areas as they relate to its fresh food operations including sales
and margin tracking, waste management, recipe analysis, food service performance and profit
contribution analysis. This system is expected to help The Pantry increase efficiency and further
enhance profitability in this already high-margin area of its operations.

…In Gasoline

In light of challenging industry conditions, The Pantry implemented several important initiatives
during 2001 to allow the Company to better manage pricing and achieve a balance between
gross profits and volume given the unprecedented f luctuation in the price of wholesale
gasoline and the impact of dramatically higher prices on customer demand.

The Pantry’s ongoing success is a direct result of its 

commitment to providing convenience to its customers. 

Its vast selection of merchandise, state-of-the-art fueling

stations and broad offering of ancillary services including

car washes, pay phones and ATM machines make 

The Pantry’s stores a popular destination for customers

looking for quality, service and convenience.

S T R E N G T H E N I N G  T H E  B O T T O M  L I N E

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
C

on
ve

ni
en

ce



The data that is contained and tracked through this system is critical to The Pantry’s ability to
react quickly to changes in the marketplace and remain competitive. This was especially
important due to the ongoing volatility that characterized the gasoline market throughout the
past year. Further, by allowing the Company to more closely track volume and gross profit,
on an individualized store basis, The Pantry is now better positioned to make decisions
regarding its product offering and customer preferences for branded and unbranded fuel 
in specific markets.

In fiscal 2001, the Company also began the roll out of Telafuel. This supply chain system has
fully automated all gasoline inventory and dispatching functions. Telafuel is a terminal/location
specific system that monitors inventory levels, allows the Company to communicate with
vendors and carriers electronically through the Internet, and schedules the timely reloading of
fueling stations.

Telafuel is also an important tool for enhancing margins. The system not only allows the
Company to search for and identify the most cost-effective fueling options for each location;
it also allows it to conserve cash by identifying ways to utilize existing inventory to ensure the
Company is not carrying excess product. With the introduction of Telafuel, The Pantry
already witnessed an 11.1% decrease in inventory levels during the second half of the year.
By the end of fiscal 2001, Telafuel was in use at 208 of The Pantry’s locations.
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Technology
In fiscal 2001, The Pantry developed and implemented a broad range of technology-based solutions to strengthen

its operational efficiency. Especially important was the roll out of new systems in its gasoline operations, which

allowed the Company to enhance profitability and better drive volume at its pumps.

These efforts centered on creating centralized mechanisms for tracking performance throughout
the Company’s vast network of fueling stations. Toward this end, The Pantry began to issue
two weekly reports covering the status of sales and margins in its gasoline operations, including
a cost analysis on in-ground inventory. This initiative was clearly a success, helping The
Pantry achieve signif icant comparable store gallon improvements in the second half of 
the year, which resulted in an overall volume increase of 7.5% for fiscal 2001.

Also important was The Pantry’s focus on developing technology-based solutions that would
enable it to make more informed decisions on pricing and inventory ordering for each individual
location. The systems are designed to enhance profitability and allow the Company to drive
volume at its pumps.

A key system which became chainwide in fiscal 2001 was GPS, The Pantry’s proprietary real-
time Gasoline Pricing System. GPS not only monitors sales, margins and pricing at each of the
Company’s fueling locations, it also enables it to monitor those of its top competitors 
in each of the markets it serves.



The Pantry also continued its investment in the upgrading of fueling facilities in order to offer
the latest technological advancements at its pumps. Today, Multiple Pump Dispensers (MPD)
have been installed at 87.8% of the Pantry’s locations, and pay-at-the-pump credit card readers
can be found at 78.4%. These enhancements are further evidence of the Company’s ongoing
commitment to providing customers with convenience and ease of use.

…Across the Board

In addition to the progress made in the Company’s merchandising strategy and gasoline
operations, significant steps were taken at the corporate level to strengthen efficiency and
reduce costs.

In f iscal 2001, the Company completed its corporate restructuring plan, streamlining its
organizational structure. This initiative focused on consolidating all administrative functions
at the Company’s headquarters in Sanford, North Carolina. Included in this plan was the
closure of The Pantry’s Florida support center in Jacksonville, which resulted in the elimination
of all duplicative functions including accounting, payroll and MIS-related activities. On an
annualized basis, this restructuring effort is expected to result in more than $5 million in savings
from reductions in expenses for personnel, benefits and other related costs.

New technology initiatives aimed at enhancing efficiency and reducing costs were also intro-
duced at the corporate level. These included the roll out of a system for electronic invoicing
with our primary wholesaler. This system facilitates inventory receiving and timely payment,
detects billing errors, and tracks invoice corrections generated by the Company. A somewhat
similar system was also introduced to handle all repair and maintenance functions. Today,
all requests for maintenance and repair services are submitted through one web-based central
system, which tracks and monitors the completion of projects.

The Company anticipates that this focus on efficiency and the actions that it has taken during
the year will help it enhance performance and productivity and ultimately position The Pantry
for a stronger future.

E N H A N C I N G  P E R F O R M A N C E  A N D  P R O D U C T I V I T Y

The Company’s many actions in fiscal 2001 to enhance performance and productivity have allowed The Pantry to

remain a leader in its primary markets, even in spite of challenging market conditions, and have positioned it to

emerge as an even stronger player in the convenience store industry going forward.
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The following table sets forth historical consolidated financial data and store operating data for the periods indicated. The selected 
historical annual consolidated financial data is derived from, and is qualified in its entirety by, our Consolidated Financial Statements,
including those contained elsewhere in this report. The information should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes thereto included
elsewhere in this report. In the table, dollars are in millions, except per store and per gallon data.

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ September 27, September 28, September 30, September 24, September 25,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues:

Merchandise sales $ 968.6 $ 907.6 $ 731.7 $ 460.8 $202.4
Gasoline sales 1,652.7 1,497.7 923.8 510.0 220.2
Commissions 21.7 25.9 23.4 14.1 4.8

Total revenues 2,643.0 2,431.2 1,678.9 984.9 427.4
Cost of Sales:

Merchandise 645.0 605.1 489.3 304.0 132.8
Gasoline 1,510.4 1,357.8 818.8 447.6 197.3

Gross profit 487.6 468.4 370.8 233.3 97.3
Operating, general and administrative expenses 364.1 337.1 262.9 172.9 77.0
Unusual charges 4.8(i) — — 1.0(e) —
Depreciation and amortization 63.5 56.1 42.8 27.6 9.5

Income from operations 55.2 75.2 65.2 31.8 10.8
Interest expense (58.7) (52.3) (41.3) (28.9) (13.0)
Income (loss) before other items (1.8) 24.8 24.8 4.7 (1.0)
Extraordinary loss — — (3.6)(g) (8.0)(f ) —
Net income (loss) $ (1.8) $ 14.0 $ 10.4 $ (3.3) $ (1.0)
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders $ (2.7) $ 14.0 $ 6.2 $ (6.3) $ (6.3)
Earnings (loss) per share before extraordinary loss:

Basic $ (0.15) $ 0.77 $ 0.71 $ (0.18) $ (1.08)
Diluted $ (0.15) $ 0.74 $ 0.65 $ (0.16) $ (1.08)

Weighted-average shares outstanding:
Basic 18,113 18,111 13,768 9,732 5,815
Diluted 18,113 18,932 15,076 11,012 5,815

Dividends paid on common stock — — — — —

Other Financial Data:
EBITDA(a) $ 123.5 $ 131.2 $ 108.0 $ 60.5 $ 20.3
Net cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 76.7 $ 88.2 $ 68.6 $ 48.0 $ 7.3
Investing activities (93.9) (148.7) (228.9) (285.4) (25.1)
Financing activities 14.5 82.7 157.1(h) 268.4 15.8

Capital expenditures(b) 43.6 56.4 47.4 42.1 14.7
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges(c) — 1.4 1.4 1.1 —

Selected Financial DataS E L E C T E D  F I N A N C I A L  D ATA
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■ ■ ■ ■ ■ September 27, September 28, September 30, September 24, September 25,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Store Operating Data:
Number of stores (end of period) 1,324 1,313 1,215 954 390
Average sales per store:

Merchandise sales (in thousands) $ 731.0 $ 713.8 $ 666.4 $ 533.3 $525.8
Gasoline gallons (in thousands) 890.4 856.9 834.8 603.9 501.2

Comparable store sales growth(d):
Merchandise (0.2)% 7.5% 9.6% 5.3% 8.5%
Gasoline gallons (3.8)% (2.4)% 5.9% 4.8% 7.2%

Operating Data:
Merchandise gross margin 33.4% 33.3% 33.1% 34.0% 34.4%
Gasoline gallons sold (in millions) 1,142.4 1,062.4 855.7 466.8 179.4
Average retail gasoline price per gallon $ 1.45 $ 1.41 $ 1.08 $ 1.09 $ 1.23
Average gasoline gross profit per gallon $ 0.125 $ 0.132 $ 0.123 $ 0.134 $0.128
Operating, general and administrative expenses 

as a percentage of total revenues 13.8% 13.9% 15.7% 17.6% 18.0%
Operating income as a percentage of total revenues 2.1% 3.1% 3.9% 3.2% 2.5%

Balance Sheet Data (end of period):
Working capital deficiency $ (29.8) $ (4.9) $ (20.4) $ (9.0) $ (8.2)
Total assets 950.0 930.9 793.7 554.8 142.8
Total debt and capital lease obligations 559.6 541.4 455.6 340.7 101.3
Shareholders’ equity (deficit) 111.1 118.0 104.2(h) 39.3 (17.9)

(a) “EBITDA” represents income from operations before depreciation and amortization, restructuring and other charges and impairment of long-lived assets. EBITDA 
is not a measure of performance under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and should not be considered as a substitute 
for net income, cash flows from operating activities and other income or cash flow statement data prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America or as a measure of profitability or liquidity. We have included information concerning EBITDA as one measure of our 
ability to service debt and thus we believe investors find this information useful. EBITDA as defined herein may not be comparable to similarly titled measures
reported by other companies.

(b) Purchases of assets to be held for sale are excluded from these amounts.

(c) For purposes of determining the ratio of earnings to fixed charges: (i) earnings consist of income (loss) before income tax benefit (expense) and extraordinary 
item plus fixed charges and (ii) fixed charges consist of interest expense, amortization of deferred financing costs, preferred stock dividends and the portion of 
rental expense representative of interest (deemed to be one-third of rental expense). Our earnings were inadequate to cover fixed charges by $1.8 million and
$6.3 million for fiscal years 2001 and 1997, respectively.

(d) The stores included in calculating comparable store sales growth are existing or replacement stores which were in operation for both fiscal years of the 
comparable period.

(e) During fiscal 1998, we recorded an integration charge of approximately $1.0 million for costs of combining our existing business with the acquired business 
of Lil’ Champ.

(f) On October 23, 1997, in connection with the Lil’ Champ acquisition, we completed the offering of our senior subordinated notes and, in a related transaction, 
completed a tender offer and consent solicitation with respect to our senior notes. The tender offer resulted in our purchasing $51.0 million in principal amount 
of the senior notes at a purchase price of 110% of the aggregate principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest and other related fees. In connection with 
this repurchase, we incurred an extraordinary loss of approximately $8.0 million related to cost of the tender offer and consent solicitation and write-off of 
deferred financing costs.

(g) On January 28, 1999, we redeemed $49.0 million in principal amount of our senior notes and paid accrued and unpaid interest up to, but not including, the
date of purchase and a 4% call premium. We recognized an extraordinary loss of approximately $3.6 million in connection with the repurchase of the senior 
notes including the payment of the 4% call premium of $2.0 million, fees paid in connection with the amendments and commitments under our bank credit facility,
and the write-off of deferred financing costs related to our repayment of our former bank credit facility.

(h) On June 8, 1999, we offered and sold 6,250,000 shares of our common stock in our initial public offering. The initial offering price was $13.00 per share 
and we received $75.6 million in net proceeds, before expenses.

(i) During fiscal 2001, we recorded restructuring and other charges of $4.8 million pursuant to a formal plan to centralize administrative functions.

Selected Financial DataS E L E C T E D  F I N A N C I A L  D ATA  continued
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The following discussion and analysis is provided to increase
understanding of, and should be read in conjunction with, the
Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes.
Additional discussion and analysis related to fiscal year 2001 is
contained in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and our
Current Reports on Form 8-K.

Introduction

By any measure, fiscal 2001 was a challenging time for our
industry and American business in general. Our operating results
were impacted by several factors including an economic down-
turn, which was particularly hard felt in the Southeast, greater
volatility in wholesale gasoline markets and increased competition
in selected markets. Throughout fiscal 2001, we focused our
attention on those aspects of our business we could inf luence 
in the face of these difficult economic and market conditions.
We are committed to taking the necessary steps to best position
The Pantry for when the business climate improves and to 
sensibly invest capital to maintain short-term liquidity and
improve long-term performance.

In fiscal 2001, our net income before unusual charges was $2.9
million, or 16 cents per share (our net loss after these charges
was $2.7 million or 15 cents per share), compared to 74 cents
per share in fiscal 2000. During the year, we recognized $9.0
million in restructuring and other unusual charges related to 
(i) our restructuring plan announced in January 2001 and dis-
cussed in “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Note
7—Restructuring and Other Charges” and (ii) the impact of 
fair market value changes in non-qualifying derivatives relating
to the adoption of SFAS No. 133 discussed in “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 8—Interest Expense”
(together the “unusual charges”). The decrease in our earnings
before the unusual charges is primarily attributable to softening
consumer spending, tighter gasoline margins and the loss of
South Carolina video gaming income. As a result of these 
factors, fiscal 2001 EBITDA declined 5.9% to $123.5 million
and income from operations before the unusual charges declined
20.2% percent to $60.0 million.

On January 24, 2001, we announced plans to centralize and
integrate corporate administrative functions into our primary
support center located in Sanford, North Carolina. Our restruc-
turing plan reduced a number of administrative positions, elimi-
nated our primary Florida administrative facility located in
Jacksonville and reduced duplicative expenses. We expect these
activities to generate approximately $5.0 million in annualized
savings beginning in fiscal 2002. In conjunction with these
actions, we recorded $4.8 million in restructuring and other
charges in fiscal 2001. We believe the integration provides a
more efficient and cost-effective administrative support structure
and, more importantly, enhances the level of service our support
functions provide to our field staff and extensive retail network.

Fiscal 2001 revenues increased 8.7% to $2.6 billion. The increase
is primarily attributable to the contribution from acquired stores
and a 2.8% increase in our average retail gasoline price per gal-
lon. Comparable store gasoline gallon volume declined 3.8% 
and comparable store merchandise sales declined 0.2%. We
believe these declines are indicative of the short-term impact
that sustained economic weakness and higher gasoline retail
prices have had on the disposable income and spending habits 
of our customers.

We continue to focus our attention on several key operating
principles:

• the consistent execution of our core strategies, including
focused attention on leveraging the quality of our growing
retail network in terms of revenues, product costs and 
operating expenses;

• the continuous effort to apply technology in all facets of 
our business;

• our research and investment in new merchandise programs and

• sensible store growth in existing and contiguous markets.

When economic conditions improve, we believe our extensive
retail network, merchandise programs, purchasing leverage and
in-store execution will allow us to improve merchandise and
gasoline gallon comparable store sales, support stable merchan-
dise margins and control store operating expenses. We continue
to focus attention and resources on upgrading existing and
acquired locations with the latest gasoline marketing technology
and designing site plans to drive customer traffic. We will con-
tinue to invest in retail and gasoline information technology to
enhance decision support tools, improve inventory management
and reduce overhead costs.

On the merchandise front, we continue to maintain a fresh and
open approach to convenience, focusing on products and serv-
ices designed to appeal to the convenience needs of today’s
time-constrained consumer. We are constantly reviewing oppor-
tunities to get the most out of our retail network—now at more
than 1,300 stores located in 10 southeastern states. We have
focused our attention on increasing ancillary or complementary
services and revenues such as food service sales, lottery commis-
sions, prepaid cellular services, phone cards, car wash offerings
and other service revenues.

In fiscal 2001, we acquired 45 stores, opened two and closed 36
stores. Historically, the stores we close are underperforming in
terms of volume and profitability and, generally, we benefit
from closing the locations by reducing direct overhead expenses
and eliminating certain fixed costs.

Given overall market conditions, we are currently being
extremely prudent and have slowed down the pace of our
acquisitions. However, this does not represent a change in our
long-term strategic direction. When the economic environment
is once again favorable, we plan to continue to sensibly acquire
premium chains located in our existing and contiguous markets.
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In conclusion, we are focused mainly on the operations side of
our business, working diligently to improve the overall produc-
tivity of our existing store base. Over the next twelve months,
we anticipate reducing our average outstanding borrowings
through scheduled principal payments and, where excess cash 
is available, allocating capital among available opportunities,
including debt reduction.

Acquisition History

Our acquisition strategy focuses on acquiring convenience stores
within or contiguous to our existing market areas. We believe
acquiring locations with demonstrated operating results involves
lower risk and is generally an economically attractive alternative
to traditional site selection and new store development. We do,
however, plan to develop new locations in high growth areas
within our existing markets.

The tables below provide information concerning the acquisitions we have completed during the last three fiscal years:

Fiscal 2001 Acquisitions

Date Acquired Trade Name Locations Stores

January 25, 2001 East Coast North Carolina and Virginia 11
December 21, 2000 Fast Lane Mississippi and Louisiana 26
Others (less than five stores) Various North Carolina, South Carolina and Mississippi 8

Total 45

Fiscal 2000 Acquisitions

Date Acquired Trade Name Locations Stores

September 14, 2000 Food Mart Mississippi 18
July 3, 2000 Mini Mart South Carolina 14
June 29, 2000 Big K Mississippi 19
April 27, 2000 Market Express South Carolina 5
January 27, 2000 On-The-Way North Carolina and Southern Virginia 12
November 11, 1999 Kangaroo Georgia 49
November 4, 1999 Cel Oil Charleston, South Carolina 7
October 7, 1999 Wicker Mart North Carolina 7
Others (less than five stores) Various Florida, North Carolina, Virginia, Mississippi and South Carolina 12

Total 143

Fiscal 1999 Acquisitions

Date Acquired Trade Name Locations Stores

July 22, 1999 Depot Food South Carolina and Northern Georgia 53
July 8, 1999 Food Chief Eastern South Carolina 29
February 25, 1999 ETNA North Carolina and Virginia 60
January 28, 1999 Handy Way North Central Florida 121
November 5, 1998 Express Stop Southeast North Carolina and Eastern South Carolina 22
October 22, 1998 Dash-N East Central North Carolina 10
Others (less than five stores) Various North Carolina and South Carolina 2

Total 297

We seek to improve the productivity and profitability of
acquired stores by implementing our merchandising and gasoline
initiatives, eliminating duplicative costs, reducing overhead and
centralizing functions such as purchasing and information tech-
nology. In normal economic and market condition environ-
ments, we believe it takes six to twelve months to fully integrate
and achieve operational and financial improvements at acquired
locations. There can be no assurance, however, that we can
achieve revenue increases or cost savings with respect to any
acquisition.

Impact of Acquisitions. These acquisitions and the related transactions
have had a significant impact on our financial condition and

results of operations since each of their respective transaction
dates. Due to the method of accounting for these acquisitions,
the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal years
presented include results of operations for each of the acquisi-
tions from the date of each acquisition only. For fiscal 2001
acquisitions, the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September
28, 2000 and the Consolidated Statements of Operations for fis-
cal years September 28, 2000 and September 30, 1999 do not
include the assets, liabilities and results of operations relating to
these acquisitions. As a result, comparisons of fiscal 2001 results
to prior fiscal years are impacted materially and the underlying
performance of same store results is obscured.
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Results of Operations

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000

Total Revenue. Total revenue for fiscal 2001 was $2.6 billion
compared to $2.4 billion for fiscal 2000, an increase of $211.9
million or 8.7%. The increase in total revenue is primarily due
to (i) the revenue from stores acquired in fiscal 2001 of $121.2
million, (ii) the effect of a full year of revenue from fiscal 2000
acquisitions of $149.0 million and (iii) a 2.8% increase in our
average retail price of gasoline gallons sold. These increases 
were partially offset by comparable store declines in merchandise
sales and gasoline gallons of 0.2% and 3.8%, respectively, as well
as lower commission revenue. The comparable store volume
declines were primarily due to (i) the lower consumer spending
associated with the economic downturn, (ii) greater volatility 
in wholesale gasoline costs and higher gasoline retail prices and
(iii) increased competition in selected markets.

Merchandise Revenue. Total merchandise revenue for fiscal 2001
was $968.6 million compared to $907.6 million for fiscal 2000, an
increase of $61.1 million or 6.7%. The increase in merchandise
revenue is primarily due to the revenue from stores acquired in
fiscal 2001 of $34.0 million, the effect of a full year of merchandise
revenue from fiscal 2000 acquisitions of $46.6 million, partially
offset by a comparable store merchandise sales decline of 0.2%.

Gasoline Revenue and Gallons. Total gasoline revenue for fiscal
2001 was $1.7 billion compared to $1.5 billion for fiscal 2000,
an increase of $155.0 million or 10.4%. The increase in gasoline
revenue is primarily due to the revenue from stores acquired in
fiscal 2001 of $86.9 million, the effect of a full year of gasoline
revenue from fiscal 2000 acquisitions of $101.5 million, and the
impact of raising gasoline retail prices. In fiscal 2001, our aver-
age retail price of gasoline was $1.45 per gallon, which repre-
sents a $0.04 per gallon or 2.8% increase in average retail price
from fiscal 2000. These increases were partially offset by a gaso-
line gallon comparable store volume decline of 3.8%.

In fiscal 2001, total gasoline gallons were 1.1 billion gallons, an
increase of 80.0 million gallons or 7.5% over fiscal 2000. The
increase in gasoline gallons is primarily due to gallon volume of
61.2 million from stores acquired in fiscal 2001 and the effect 
of a full year of gasoline volume from 2000 acquisitions of 71.3
million partially offset by comparable store gasoline volume
decreases of 3.8% or a decrease of approximately 34.7 million
gallons. The fiscal 2001 same store gallon decline was primarily
due to lower demand coupled with heightened competitive 
factors. Demand has been inf luenced by a slowing economy
which has resulted in lower consumer spending and less travel,
higher gasoline retail prices as a result of wholesale gasoline 
cost increases and our efforts to manage the balance between
gasoline gross profit and gallon volume.

Commission Revenue. Total commission revenue for fiscal 2001 was
$21.7 million compared to $25.9 million for fiscal 2000, a decrease
of $4.2 million or 16.3%. The decrease in commission revenue is
primarily due to the loss of approximately $3.9 million in video

poker revenue as a result of the July 1, 2000 ban in South
Carolina and lower lottery commissions in Florida and Georgia
associated with lower consumer spending. These declines were
partially offset by revenue from stores acquired in fiscal 2001 
of $351 thousand and the effect of a full year of commission 
revenue from 2000 acquisitions of $869 thousand.

Total Gross Profit. Total gross profit for fiscal 2001 was $487.6
million compared to $468.4 million for fiscal 2000, an increase
of $19.3 million or 4.1%. The increase in gross profit is prima-
rily due to the gross profit from stores acquired in fiscal 2001 of
$17.1 million, the effect of a full year of operations from stores
acquired in 2000 of $26.4 million, partially offset by comparable
store volume declines, lower gasoline margins and the decline in
commission revenue.

Merchandise Gross Margin. Fiscal 2001 merchandise gross margin
was 33.4%, a 10 basis point increase over fiscal 2000. The
increase was primarily due to margin improvements in selected
categories and an increase in food service sales, which earn
higher gross margin percentages.

Gasoline Gross Profit Per Gallon. Gasoline gross profit per gallon
decreased to $0.125 in fiscal 2001 from $0.132 in fiscal 2000
primarily due to increased volatility in wholesale gasoline mar-
kets. We believe such markets were volatile due to many factors,
including world crude supply and demand fundamentals, domes-
tic fuel inventories and domestic refining capacity. Due to this
volatility, our margin per gallon sold on a quarterly basis ranged
from a low of $0.114 in our second quarter to a high of $0.134
in our third quarter of fiscal 2001.

Operating, General and Administrative Expenses. Operating expenses
for fiscal 2001 were $364.1 million compared to $337.1 million
for fiscal 2000, an increase of $27.0 million or 8.0%. The increase
in operating expenses is primarily due to the operating and lease
expenses associated with the stores acquired in fiscal 2001 of
$13.4 million and the effect of a full year of expenses for stores
acquired in fiscal 2000 of $20.2 million.

Restructuring and Other Charges. During fiscal 2001, we recorded
$4.8 million in restructuring and other non-recurring charges
related to a formal plan designed to strengthen our organiza-
tional structure and reduce operating costs by centralizing cor-
porate administrative functions. The plan included closing an
administrative facility located in Jacksonville, Florida, and inte-
grating key marketing, finance and administrative activities into
our corporate headquarters located in Sanford, North Carolina.
The restructuring charge consisted of $1.7 million of employee
termination benefits, $1.7 million of lease obligations and $490
thousand of legal and other professional consultant fees. During
fiscal 2001, we also incurred and expended $844 thousand in
other non-recurring charges for related actions. The other non-
recurring charges were one-time expenses as a result of this
restructuring plan.

Income from Operations. Income from operations for fiscal 2001
was $55.2 million compared to $75.2 million for fiscal 2000, a
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decrease of $20.0 million or 26.6%. The decrease is primarily
due to the items discussed above and a $7.5 million increase 
in depreciation and amortization expense associated with acqui-
sition activity and capital expenditures.

EBITDA. EBITDA represents income from operations before
depreciation and amortization, restructuring and other charges,
and extraordinary loss. EBITDA for fiscal 2001 was $123.5 mil-
lion compared to $131.2 million for fiscal 2000, a decrease of
$7.7 million or 5.9%. The decrease is primarily due to the items
discussed above.

EBITDA is not a measure of performance under accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and should not be considered as a substitute for net income, cash
f lows from operating activities and other income or cash f low
statement data prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, or as a measure
of profitability or liquidity. We have included information con-
cerning EBITDA as one measure of our cash f low and historical
ability to service debt and thus we believe investors find this
information useful. EBITDA as defined herein may not be com-
parable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

Interest Expense (see—“Liquidity and Capital Resources—Long-Term
Debt”). Interest expense in fiscal 2001 was $58.7 million com-
pared to $52.3 million for fiscal 2000, an increase of $6.4 mil-
lion or 12.2%. In fiscal 2001, interest expense was primarily
related to interest costs of $20.5 million on our senior subordinated
notes and approximately $30.2 million on our senior credit facility.
The increase in interest expense was primarily due to a $4.2 mil-
lion decline in the fair market value of certain non-qualifying
derivative instruments and increased borrowings associated with
our acquisition activity. These increases were partially offset by a
general decline in interest rates.

Income Tax Expense. In spite of our loss before income taxes of
$1.8 million, we recorded income tax expense of $871 thousand
in fiscal 2001. Our effective tax rate is negatively impacted by
non-deductible goodwill related to certain acquisitions and other
permanent book-tax differences.

Net Loss/Income. Net loss for fiscal 2001 was $2.7 million com-
pared to net income of $14.0 million for fiscal 2000, a decrease
of $16.7 million or 119.0%. The decrease is primarily due to
lower gasoline margin per gallon, lower comparable store vol-
ume and lower commission revenue, as well as $9.0 million in
pre-tax charges related to our restructuring plan and fair market
value adjustments related to certain non-qualifying derivative
instruments. Fiscal 2001 net income before unusual charges was
$2.9 million, or 16 cents per share, compared to 74 cents per
share in fiscal 2000.

Fiscal 2000 Compared to Fiscal 1999

We operate on a 52- or 53-week fiscal year. Our operations for f iscal
2000 contained 52 weeks while f iscal 1999 contained 53 weeks.When
we make reference to f iscal 1999 adjusted for the number of weeks, we

have simply adjusted fiscal 1999 fourth quarter results to approximate a
13-week period.

Total Revenue. Total revenue for fiscal 2000 was $2.4 billion
compared to $1.7 billion for fiscal 1999, an increase of $752.3
million or 44.8%. The increase in total revenue is primarily due
to the revenue from stores acquired in fiscal 2000 of $217.6 mil-
lion, the effect of a full year of revenue from fiscal 1999 acquisi-
tions of $290.9 million, and comparable store merchandise sales
growth of 7.5%. Comparable store merchandise sales increases at
our locations are primarily due to increased customer counts and
average transaction size resulting from more competitive gasoline
pricing, enhanced store appearance and store merchandising, and
increased in-store promotional activity. Adjusting for the number
of weeks in fiscal 1999, the increase in total revenues was 48.3%.

Merchandise Revenue. Total merchandise revenue for fiscal 2000
was $907.6 million compared to $731.7 million for fiscal 1999,
an increase of $175.9 million or 24.0%. The increase in mer-
chandise revenue is primarily due to the revenue from stores
acquired in fiscal 2000 of $68.6 million, the effect of a full year
of merchandise revenue from fiscal 1999 acquisitions of $90.1
million, and comparable store merchandise sales growth of 7.5%
or an increase of approximately $42.3 million. Adjusting for the
number of weeks in fiscal 1999, the increase in merchandise
revenues was 26.9%.

Gasoline Revenue and Gallons. Total gasoline revenue for fiscal
2000 was $1.5 billion compared to $923.8 million for fiscal
1999, an increase of $573.9 million or 62.1%. The increase in
gasoline revenue is primarily due to the revenue from stores
acquired in fiscal 2000 of $146.4 million, the effect of a full year
of gasoline revenue from fiscal 1999 acquisitions of $197.2 mil-
lion, and the impact of raising gasoline retail prices. In fiscal
2000, our average retail price of gasoline was $1.41 per gallon,
which represents a $0.33 per gallon increase from fiscal 1999.
These increases were partially offset by a gasoline gallon com-
parable store volume decline of 2.4%.

In fiscal 2000, total gasoline gallons were 1.1 billion gallons
compared to 855.7 million gallons in fiscal 1999, an increase of
206.7 million gallons or 24.2%. The increase in gasoline gallons
is primarily due to gallon volume of 106.1 million from stores
acquired in fiscal 2000, the effect of a full year of gasoline vol-
ume from 1999 acquisitions of 151.3 million offset by compara-
ble store gasoline volume decreases of 2.4% or a decrease of
approximately 14.9 million gallons. The fiscal 2000 same store
gallon decline was primarily due to lower demand coupled with
heightened competitive factors in selected markets such as Tampa
and Orlando. Demand has been inf luenced by higher gasoline
retail prices as a result of wholesale gasoline cost increases and
our efforts to manage the balance between gasoline gross profit
and gallon volume.

Commission Revenue. Total commission revenue for fiscal 2000
was $25.9 million compared to $23.4 million for fiscal 1999, an
increase of $2.5 million or 10.8%. The increase in commission
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revenue is primarily due to revenue from stores acquired in fis-
cal 2000 of $2.6 million, the effect of a full year of commission
revenue from 1999 acquisitions of $3.6 million and comparable
store commission revenue growth. These increases were partially
offset by the loss of video poker revenue in the state of South
Carolina as of July 1, 2000. As a result, video poker commission
in fiscal 2000 decreased 38.8% to $3.8 million from $6.2 million
in fiscal 1999.

Total Gross Profit. Total gross profit for fiscal 2000 was $468.4
million compared to $370.8 million for fiscal 1999, an increase
of $97.5 million or 26.3%. The increase in gross profit is prima-
rily due to the gross profit from stores acquired in fiscal 2000 of
$37.4 million, the effect of a full year of operations from stores
acquired in 1999 of $51.9 million and higher merchandise and
gasoline margins. Adjusting for the number of weeks in fiscal
1999, the increase in total gross profit was 30.1%.

Merchandise Gross Margin. Fiscal 2000 merchandise gross margin
was 33.3%, a 20 basis point increase over fiscal 1999. The
increase was primarily due to margin improvements in selected
categories and an increase in food service sales, which earn
higher gross margin percentages.

Gasoline Gross Profit Per Gallon. Gasoline gross profit per gallon
increased to $0.132 in fiscal 2000 from $0.123 in fiscal 1999 pri-
marily due to our efforts to manage the balance between gasoline
gallon volume and gasoline gross profit per gallon. During fiscal
2000, we experienced a volatile wholesale gasoline market due
to many factors, including world crude supply and demand 
fundamentals, domestic fuel inventories and domestic refining
capacity. Due to this volatility, our margin per gallon sold on a
quarterly basis ranged from a low of $0.101 in our second quar-
ter to a high of $0.153 in our fourth quarter of fiscal 2000.

Operating, General and Administrative Expenses. Operating expenses
for fiscal 2000 were $337.1 million compared to $262.9 million
for fiscal 1999, an increase of $74.3 million or 28.3%. The
increase in operating expenses is primarily due to the operating
and lease expenses associated with the stores acquired in fiscal
2000 of $26.1 million, the effect of a full year of expenses for
stores acquired in fiscal 1999 of $38.3 million, as well as an
increase in general corporate expenses associated with our store
growth initiatives. As a percentage of total revenue, operating,
general and administrative expenses decreased to 13.9% in fiscal
2000 from 15.7% in fiscal 1999.

Income from Operations. Income from operations for fiscal 2000
was $75.2 million compared to $65.2 million for fiscal 1999, an
increase of $10.0 million or 15.4%. The increase is primarily due
to the items discussed above. As a percentage of total revenue,
income from operations decreased to 3.1% in fiscal 2000 from
3.9% in fiscal 1999.

EBITDA. EBITDA represents income from operations before
depreciation and amortization, restructuring and other charges
and extraordinary loss. EBITDA for fiscal 2000 was $131.2 mil-
lion compared to $108.0 million for fiscal 1999, an increase of

$23.3 million or 21.6%. The increase is primarily due to the
items discussed above.

EBITDA is not a measure of performance under accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and should not be considered as a substitute for net income, cash
f lows from operating activities and other income or cash f low
statement data prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, or as a meas-
ure of profitability or liquidity. We have included information
concerning EBITDA as one measure of our cash f low and histor-
ical ability to service debt and thus we believe investors find this
information useful. EBITDA as defined herein may not be com-
parable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

Interest Expense (see—“Liquidity and Capital Resources—Long-Term
Debt”). Interest expense in fiscal 2000 was $52.3 million com-
pared to $41.3 million for fiscal 1999, an increase of $11.0 mil-
lion or 26.8%. In fiscal 2000, interest expense was primarily
related to interest costs of $20.5 million on our senior subordi-
nated notes and approximately $30.4 million on our senior
credit facility. The increase in interest expense was primarily due
to increased borrowings associated with our acquisition activity
and a general rise in interest rates.

Income Tax Expense. Our effective income tax rate for fiscal 2000
was 43.5%. Our effective tax rate is negatively impacted by 
non-deductible goodwill related to certain acquisitions and other
permanent book-tax differences.

Net Income. Net income for fiscal 2000 was $14.0 million com-
pared to net income of $10.4 million for fiscal 1999, an increase
of $3.6 million or 34.4%. The increase is primarily due to the
absence of any extraordinary charges in fiscal 2000 as compared
to fiscal 1999, which had an extraordinary loss of $3.6 million
associated with certain debt restructuring activity. Adjusting for
the number of weeks in fiscal 1999 and excluding the fiscal
1999 extraordinary loss, the increase in net income in fiscal
2000 was 4.0%.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows from Operations. Due to the nature of our business,
substantially all sales are for cash. Cash provided by operations is
our primary source of liquidity. We rely primarily upon cash
provided by operating activities, supplemented as necessary 
from time to time by borrowings under our senior credit facil-
ity, sale-leaseback transactions, asset dispositions and equity
investments, to finance our operations, pay interest and fund
capital expenditures and acquisitions. Cash provided by operat-
ing activities for fiscal 1999 totaled $68.6 million, for fiscal 2000
totaled $88.2 million, and for fiscal 2001 totaled $76.7 million.
We had $50.6 million of cash and cash equivalents on hand at
September 27, 2001.

Senior Credit Facility. On January 28, 1999, we entered into our
senior credit facility. The senior credit facility consisted of a
$45.0 million revolving credit facility, a $50.0 million acquisition
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facility and a $240.0 million term loan facility. The revolving
credit facility is available to fund working capital financing, gen-
eral corporate purposes and for the issuance of standby letters of
credit. The acquisition facility is available to fund future acquisi-
tions of related businesses. As of September 27, 2001, there 
were $45.5 million outstanding under the acquisition facility and 
no borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit facility,
except for approximately $12.9 million of letters of credit issued
thereunder. As of September 27, 2001, we have approximately
$32.1 million in available borrowing capacity.

During fiscal 2000, we entered into amendments to our senior
credit facility to include an additional $100.0 million under our
term loan facility. Proceeds from the term loans were used to
prepay amounts outstanding under our acquisition facility and 
to fund acquisitions closed during fiscal 2000.

For the twelve month period ending September 27, 2001, we
did not satisfy two financial covenants required by our senior
credit facility. We have since received a waiver from our senior
credit group and executed an amendment to the senior credit
facility that includes, among other things, a modification to
financial covenants and increases the f loating interest rate spread
by 50 basis points as long as its debt ratio is greater than 4.5:1,
reducing to 25 basis points when the debt ratio is less than 4.5:1.
The changes to financial covenants, among other things, loos-
ened our coverage and debt ratios and imposed tighter limits on
capital expenditures and expenditures to acquire related busi-
nesses. Our net capital expenditures are limited to $27.5 million
in fiscal 2002, $30.0 million in fiscal 2003, $32.5 million in
2004 and increases to $35.0 million thereafter. The amendment
limits acquisition expenditures to $3.0 million in fiscal 2002 and
$15.0 million in fiscal 2003.

Our senior credit facility contains covenants restricting our abil-
ity and the ability of any of our subsidiaries to, among other
things: (i) incur additional indebtedness; (ii) declare dividends 
or redeem or repurchase capital stock; (iii) prepay, redeem or
purchase debt; (iv) incur liens; (v) make loans and investments;
(vi) make capital expenditures; (vii) engage in mergers, acquisitions
or asset sales; and (viii) engage in transactions with affiliates. Our
senior credit facility also contains financial ratios and tests which
must be met with respect to minimum coverage and leverage
ratios, pro forma cash f low, maximum business acquisition
expenditures and maximum capital expenditures. Restrictive
covenants in our debt agreements may restrict our ability to
implement our acquisition strategy.

2001 Acquisitions. In fiscal 2001, we acquired a total of 45 con-
venience stores in 9 transactions for approximately $56.0 mil-
lion, net of cash acquired. These acquisitions were funded with
borrowings under our senior credit facility and cash on hand.

Capital Expenditures. Capital expenditures (excluding all acquisi-
tions) for fiscal 2001 were $45.2 million. Capital expenditures
are primarily expenditures for existing store improvements, store
equipment, new store development, information systems and

expenditures to comply with regulatory statutes, including those
related to environmental matters. We finance substantially all
capital expenditures and new store development through cash
f low from operations, a sale-leaseback program or similar lease
activity, vendor reimbursements and asset dispositions.

Our sale-leaseback program includes the packaging of our
owned convenience store real estate, both land and buildings, 
for sale to investors in return for their agreement to lease the
property back to us under long-term leases. Generally, the leases
are operating leases at market rates with terms of twenty years
with four five-year renewal options. The lease payment is based
on market rates applied to the cost of each respective property.
We retain ownership of all personal property and gasoline mar-
keting equipment. The senior credit facility limits or caps the
proceeds of sale-leasebacks that we can use to fund our opera-
tions or capital expenditures. Under this sale-leaseback program,
we received $3.5 million in fiscal 2001 and $9.5 million during
fiscal 2000.

In fiscal 2001, we received approximately $13.6 million in sale-
leaseback proceeds, vendor reimbursements for capital improve-
ments and proceeds from asset dispositions; therefore, net capital
expenditures, excluding all acquisitions, for fiscal 2001 were
$31.6 million. We anticipate that net capital expenditures for 
fiscal 2002 will be approximately $25.5 million.

Long-Term Debt. At September 27, 2001, our long-term debt
consisted primarily of $200.0 million of the senior subordinated
notes and $343.4 million in loans under our senior credit facil-
ity. See “—Senior Credit Facility.”

We have outstanding $200.0 million of 101⁄4% senior subordi-
nated notes due 2007. Interest on the senior subordinated notes
is due on October 15 and April 15 of each year. The senior 
subordinated notes contain covenants that, among other things,
restrict our ability and any restricted subsidiary’s ability to (i) pay
dividends or make distributions, except in amounts not in excess
of a percentage of our net income or proceeds of debt or equity
issuances and in amounts not in excess of $5.0 million; (ii) issue
stock of subsidiaries; (iii) make investments in non-affiliated
entities, except employee loans of up to $3.0 million; (iv) repur-
chase stock, except stock owned by employees in amounts not
in excess of $2.0 million with the proceeds from debt or equity
issuances; (v) incur liens not securing debt permitted under the
senior subordinated notes; (vi) enter into transactions with affili-
ates; (vii) enter into sale-leaseback transactions or (viii) engage in
mergers or consolidations.

We can incur debt under the senior subordinated notes if the
ratio of our pro forma EBITDA to fixed charges, after giving
effect to such incurrence, is at least 2 to 1. Even if we do not
meet this ratio we can incur: (i) bank credit facility acquisition
debt of up to $50.0 million and other debt in an amount equal
to the greater of $45.0 million or 4.0% times our annualized
revenues; (ii) capital leases or acquisition debt in amounts not to
exceed in the aggregate 10% of our tangible assets at time of
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incurrence; (iii) intercompany debt; (iv) pre-existing debt; (v) up
to $15.0 million in any type of debt or (vi) debt for refinancing
of the above described debt.

The senior subordinated notes also place conditions on the terms
of asset sales or transfers and require us either to reinvest the
proceeds of an asset sale or transfer, or, if we do not reinvest
those proceeds, to pay down our senior credit facility or other
senior debt or to offer to redeem our senior subordinated notes
with any asset sale proceeds not so used. All of the senior sub-
ordinated notes may be redeemed after October 15, 2002 at a
redemption price which begins at 105.125% and decreases to
100.0% after October 2005.

Cash Flows From Financing Activities. We used proceeds from our
senior credit facility and cash on hand to finance fiscal 2001
acquisitions and long-term debt principal requirements.

Cash Requirements. We believe that cash on hand, together with
cash f low anticipated to be generated from operations, short-
term borrowing for seasonal working capital and permitted bor-
rowings under our credit facilities will be sufficient to enable us
to satisfy anticipated cash requirements for operating, investing
and financing activities, including debt service, for the next
twelve months.

Shareholders’ Equity. As of September 27, 2001, our shareholders’
equity totaled $111.1 million. The decrease of $6.8 million in
shareholders’ equity is attributed to fiscal year 2001 net loss 
of $2.7 million and a decrease of $4.3 million in accumulated
comprehensive income related to the fair value changes in our
qualifying derivative financial instruments.

Additional paid-in capital is impacted by the accounting treatment
applied to a 1987 leveraged buyout of the outstanding common
stock of our predecessor which resulted in a debit to equity of
$17.1 million. This debit had the effect, among others, of offsetting
$7.0 million of equity capital invested in us by our shareholders.

Environmental Considerations. We are required by federal and state
regulations to maintain evidence of financial responsibility for
taking corrective action and compensating third parties in the
event of a release from our underground storage tank systems. In
order to comply with the applicable requirements, we maintain
surety bonds in the aggregate amount of approximately $2.0
million in favor of state environmental enforcement agencies in
the states of North Carolina, South Carolina, Georgia, Virginia,
Tennessee, Indiana, Kentucky and Louisiana. We also rely on
reimbursements from applicable state trust funds. In Florida and
Georgia, we meet such financial responsibility requirements
through private commercial liability insurance. In Mississippi, we
meet our financial responsibility requirements through coverage
under the state trust fund.

All states in which we operate or have operated underground
storage tank systems have established trust funds for the sharing,
recovering and reimbursing of certain cleanup costs and liabili-
ties incurred as a result of releases from underground storage

tank systems. These trust funds, which essentially provide insur-
ance coverage for the cleanup of environmental damages caused
by the operation of underground storage tank systems, are
funded by an underground storage tank registration fee and a 
tax on the wholesale purchase of motor fuels within each state.
We have paid underground storage tank registration fees and
gasoline taxes to each state where we operate to participate in
these trust programs and we have filed claims and received
reimbursement in North Carolina, South Carolina, Kentucky,
Indiana, Georgia, Florida and Tennessee. We have also filed
claims and received credit toward our trust fund deductibles in
Virginia. The coverage afforded by each state fund varies but
generally provides up to $1.0 million per site or occurrence for
the cleanup of environmental contamination, and most provide
coverage for third-party liabilities.

Environmental reserves of $12.2 million as of September 27,
2001, represent estimates for future expenditures for remedia-
tion, tank removal and litigation associated with 535 known
contaminated sites as a result of releases and are based on current
regulations, historical results and certain other factors. Although
we can make no assurances, we anticipate that we will be reim-
bursed for a portion of these expenditures from state trust funds
and private insurance. As of September 27, 2001, amounts
which are probable of reimbursement (based on our experience)
from those sources total $10.4 million and are recorded as long-
term environmental receivables. These receivables are expected
to be collected within a period of twelve to eighteen months
after the reimbursement claim has been submitted. In Florida,
remediation of such contamination before January 1, 1999 
will be performed by the state and we expect that substantially
all of the costs will be paid by the state trust fund. We do have
locations where the applicable trust fund does not cover a
deductible or has a co-pay which may be less than the cost of
such remediation. To the extent such third parties do not pay
for remediation as we anticipate, we will be obligated to make
such payments, which could materially adversely affect our
financial condition and results of operations. Reimbursement
from state trust funds will be dependent upon the maintenance
and continued solvency of the various funds. Although we are
not aware of releases or contamination at other locations where
we currently operate or have operated stores, any such releases
or contamination could require substantial remediation expendi-
tures, some or all of which may not be eligible for reimburse-
ment from state trust funds.

Several of the locations identified as contaminated are being
cleaned up by third parties who have indemnified us as to
responsibility for clean up matters. Additionally, we are awaiting
closure notices on several other locations which will release us
from responsibility related to known contamination at those
sites. These sites continue to be included in our environmental
reserve until a final closure notice is received.
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Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Effective September 29, 2000, we adopted SFAS No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended
by SFAS No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and
Certain Hedging Activities (‘‘SFAS No. 133’’). SFAS No. 133, as
amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments
embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities. The
statement requires that an entity recognize all derivatives as
either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial position
and measure those instruments at fair value.

As a result of our financing activities, we are exposed to changes
in interest rates, which may adversely affect our results of opera-
tions and financial condition. In seeking to minimize the risk
associated with these activities we have entered into interest rate
swap arrangements, which effectively convert a portion of our
variable rate debt to a fixed rate. The adoption of SFAS No.133
resulted in a cumulative transition adjustment of approximately
$461 thousand (net of taxes of $289 thousand). The initial adop-
tion of SFAS No. 133 did not have a material impact on our
results of operations or financial condition. Our derivative liabil-
ities were $11.3 million as of September 27, 2001.

Effective September 29, 2000, we also adopted the provisions 
of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting
Bulletin (‘‘SAB’’) No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements. SAB No. 101 clarifies certain existing accounting
principles for the timing of revenue recognition and the classifica-
tion of certain income, expense and balance sheets in the financial
statements. The adoption of SAB No. 101 did not have a mate-
rial impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, which
establishes accounting and reporting standards for all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, and establishes specific
criteria for the recognition of intangible assets separately from
goodwill. SFAS No. 141 eliminates the pooling-of-interest method
of accounting and requires all acquisitions consummated subse-
quent to June 30, 2001 to be accounted for under the purchase
method. The adoption of SFAS No. 141 did not have a material
impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards 
Not Yet Adopted

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets, which addresses financial accounting and
reporting for acquired goodwill and other intangible assets.
SFAS No. 142 eliminates amortization of goodwill and other
intangible assets that are determined to have an indefinite useful
life and instead requires an impairment only approach. At adoption,
any goodwill impairment loss will be recognized as the cumulative 

effect of a change in accounting principal. Subsequently, any
impairment losses will be recognized as a component of
income from operations. As of September 27, 2001, we have 
net goodwill of $277.7 million and have incurred $9.7 million
in goodwill amortization in the statement of operations during
fiscal 2001. The adoption of SFAS No. 142 will result in our
discontinuation of goodwill amortization. We will be required
to test goodwill using an impairment method under the new
standard at adoption and at least annually thereafter, which 
could have an adverse effect on our future results of operations 
if an impairment occurs. As permitted, we early adopted SFAS
No. 142 effective September 28, 2001.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations, which addresses financial accounting
and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of
tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs.
SFAS No. 143 requires that the fair value of a liability for an
asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which
it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made.
The associated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the
carrying amount of the long-lived asset. Adoption of SFAS No.
143 is required for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002,
which would be our first quarter of fiscal 2003. We do not
anticipate the adoption of SFAS No. 143 will have a material
impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. This statement
supercedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of. This state-
ment addresses financial accounting and reporting for the
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. SFAS No. 144 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001,
with earlier application encouraged. We do not anticipate that
the adoption of SFAS No. 144 will have a material impact on
our results of operations and financial condition.

Inf lation

During fiscal 2001, wholesale gasoline fuel prices remained
volatile, hitting a high of $36 per barrel in October 2000 and a
low of $21 per barrel in September 2001. Generally, we pass
along wholesale gasoline cost changes to our customers through
retail price changes. Gasoline price volatility has had an impact
on total revenue, gross profit dollars and gross profit percentage.

General CPI, excluding energy, increased 2.7% during fiscal
2001 and food at home, which is most indicative of our mer-
chandise inventory, increased similarly. While we have generally
been able to pass along these price increases to our customers,
we can make no assurances that continued inf lation will not have
a material adverse effect on our sales and gross profit dollars.

MD&AM A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A LY S I S  O F  F I N A N C I A L  C O N D I T I O N  A N D  R E S U LT S  O F  O P E R AT I O N S continued
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures 
About Market Risk

Quantitative Disclosures:

We are exposed to certain market risks inherent in our financial
instruments. These instruments arise from transactions entered
into in the normal course of business and, in some cases, relate to
our acquisitions of related businesses. We are subject to interest
rate risk on our existing long-term debt and any future financing

requirements. Our fixed rate debt consists primarily of out-
standing balances on our senior subordinated notes and our 
variable rate debt relates to borrowings under our senior 
credit facility.

The following table presents the future principal cash f lows 
and weighted-average interest rates expected on our existing
long-term debt instruments. Fair values have been determined
based on quoted market prices as of December 12, 2001.

In order to reduce our exposure to interest rate f luctuations, 
we have entered into interest rate swap arrangements, in 
which we agree to exchange, at specified intervals, the differ-
ence between fixed and variable interest amounts calculated 
by reference to an agreed upon notional amount. The interest
rate differential is ref lected as an adjustment to interest expense 
over the life of the swaps. Fixed rate swaps are used to reduce our
risk of increased interest costs during periods of rising interest
rates. At September 27, 2001, the interest rate on 70.0% 
of our debt was fixed by either the nature of the obligation 
or through the interest rate swap arrangements compared to
70.6% at September 28, 2000.

The following table presents the notional principal amount,
weighted-average pay rate, weighted-average receive rate and
weighted-average years to maturity on the Company’s interest
rate swap contracts:

INTEREST RATE SWAP CONTRACTS

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ September 27, September 28,
Dollars in Thousands 2001 2000

Notional principal amount $180,000 $170,000
Weighted-average pay rate 6.12% 6.41%
Weighted-average receive rate 2.92% 6.83%
Weighted-average years to maturity 1.86 2.11

Effective February 1, 2001, we entered into an interest rate 
collar agreement covering a notional amount of $55.0 million.
The interest rate collar agreement expires February 2003, 
and has a cap rate of 5.70% and a f loor rate of 5.03%. As of
September 27, 2001, the fair value of our swap and collar 
agreements represented a liability of $11.1 million.

Qualitative Disclosures:

Our primary exposure relates to:

• interest rate risk on long-term and short-term borrowings;

• our ability to refinance our senior subordinates notes at
maturity at market rates;

• the impact of interest rate movements on our ability to 
meet interest expense requirements and exceed financial
covenants and

• the impact of interest rate movements on our ability to
obtain adequate financing to fund future acquisitions.

We manage interest rate risk on our outstanding long-term and
short-term debt through our use of fixed and variable rate debt.
While we cannot predict or manage our ability to refinance
existing debt or the impact interest rate movements will have on
our existing debt, management continues to evaluate our finan-
cial position on an ongoing basis.

EXPECTED MATURITY DATE

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ As of September 27, 2001
FY FY FY FY FY

Dollars in Thousands 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter Total Fair Value

Long-Term Debt $40,000 $43,255 $52,912 $88,654 $119,354 $200,000 $544,175 $539,096
Weighted-Average Interest Rate 9.20% 9.05% 8.62% 8.87% 9.57% 10.25% 9.14%

As of September 28, 2000
FY FY FY FY FY

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Thereafter Total Fair Value

Long-Term Debt $20,650 $ 25,319 $28,573 $ 45,073 $ 88,654 $ 319,354 $ 527,623 $ 503,472
Weighted-Average Interest Rate 10.14% 10.22% 10.23% 10.22% 10.24% 10.26% 10.22%
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■ ■ ■ ■ ■ September 27, September 28,
Dollars in Thousands 2001 2000

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 50,611 $ 53,354
Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,205 at September 28, 2000 

and $146 at September 27, 2001) 30,424 23,163
Inventories (Note 3) 81,687 87,962
Prepaid expenses 3,521 5,318
Property held for sale 1,644 2,324
Deferred income taxes (Note 9) 2,591 2,070

Total current assets 170,478 174,191

Property and equipment, net (Notes 4 and 10) 470,678 466,967

Other assets:
Goodwill (net of accumulated amortization of $24,352 at September 28, 2000

and $34,096 at September 27, 2001) (Note 2) 277,665 250,977
Deferred financing costs (net of accumulated amortization of $4,513 at September 28, 2000

and $6,584 at September 27, 2001) (Note 5) 10,299 12,317
Environmental receivables (Note 11) 10,428 12,818
Other 10,444 13,650

Total other assets 308,836 289,762

Total assets $949,992 $930,920

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Current liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 5) $ 40,000 $ 20,650
Current maturities of capital lease obligations (Note 10) 1,363 1,151
Accounts payable 94,169 101,931
Accrued interest (Note 5) 11,163 12,050
Accrued compensation and related taxes 12,514 13,889
Income taxes payable (Note 9) — 1,250
Other accrued taxes 14,515 13,396
Accrued insurance 6,161 5,678
Other accrued liabilities (Notes 6, 7 and 11) 20,423 9,116

Total current liabilities 200,308 179,111

Long-term debt (Note 5) 504,175 506,975

Other non-current liabilities:
Environmental costs (Note 11) 12,207 14,066
Deferred income taxes (Note 9) 33,488 34,508
Deferred revenue (Note 11) 57,560 54,802
Capital lease obligations (Note 10) 14,020 12,648
Other (Note 6) 17,093 10,830

Total other non-current liabilities 134,368 126,854

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 5, 10, 11 and 16)
Shareholders’ Equity:

Common stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized; 18,111,474 and 18,114,737 issued
and outstanding at September 28, 2000 and September 27, 2001, respectively (Note 13) 182 182

Additional paid-in capital (Note 13) 128,043 128,018
Shareholder loans (837) (912)
Accumulated other comprehensive deficit (net of deferred taxes of $2,781

at September 27, 2001) (Note 6) (4,283) —
Accumulated deficit (11,964) (9,308)

Total shareholders’ equity 111,141 117,980

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $949,992 $930,920

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Balance SheetsC O N S O L I D AT E D  B A L A N C E  S H E E T S
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■ ■ ■ ■ ■ September 27, September 28, September 30,
Dollars in Thousands, except per share amounts 2001 2000 1999

(52 weeks) (52 weeks) (53 weeks)

Revenues:
Merchandise sales $ 968,614 $ 907,550 $ 731,681
Gasoline sales 1,652,725 1,497,696 923,786
Commissions 21,705 25,938 23,403

Total revenues 2,643,044 2,431,184 1,678,870

Cost of sales:
Merchandise 645,012 605,054 489,258
Gasoline 1,510,389 1,357,766 818,784

Total cost of sales 2,155,401 1,962,820 1,308,042

Gross profit 487,643 468,364 370,828

Operating expenses:
Operating, general and administrative expenses 364,134 337,116 262,852
Restructuring and other charges (Note 7) 4,771 — —
Depreciation and amortization 63,545 56,062 42,798

Total operating expenses 432,450 393,178 305,650

Income from operations 55,193 75,186 65,178

Other income (expense):
Interest expense (Note 8) (58,731) (52,329) (41,280)
Miscellaneous 1,753 1,915 852

Total other expense (56,978) (50,414) (40,428)

Income (loss) before income taxes and extraordinary loss (1,785) 24,772 24,750
Income tax expense (Note 9) (871) (10,776) (10,750)

Net income (loss) before extraordinary loss (2,656) 13,996 14,000
Extraordinary loss (Note 5) — — (3,584)

Net income (loss) $ (2,656) $ 13,996 $ 10,416

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders (Note 14) $ (2,656) $ 13,996 $ 6,233

Earnings per share (Note 17):
Basic:

Income (loss) before extraordinary loss $ (0.15) $ 0.77 $ 0.71
Extraordinary loss — — (0.26)

Net income (loss) $ (0.15) $ 0.77 $ 0.45

Diluted:
Income (loss) before extraordinary loss $ (0.15) $ 0.74 $ 0.65
Extraordinary loss — — (0.24)

Net income (loss) $ (0.15) $ 0.74 $ 0.41

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

OperationsC O N S O L I D AT E D  S TAT E M E N T S  O F  O P E R AT I O N S
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Shareholders’ EquityC O N S O L I D AT E D  S TAT E M E N T S  O F  S H A R E H O L D E R S ’  E Q U I T Y

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ Preferred Stock Common Stock Total Accumulated
Additional Additional Shareholder Comprehensive Accumulated

Shares and Dollars in Thousands Shares Par Value Shares Par Value Paid-in Capital Other (1) Paid-in Capital Loans Deficit Deficit Total

Balance at September 24, 1998 18 $ — 11,705 $117 $ 86,048 $(17,109) $ 68,939 $(215) $ — $(29,537) $ 39,304
Net income — — — — — — — — — 10,416 10,416
Issuances of common stock — — 157 2 1,788 — 1,788 (722) — — 1,068
Public sale of common stock at $13.00 per share, net of expenses — — 6,250 63 72,916 — 72,916 — — — 72,979
Redemption of Series B preferred stock (18) — — — (15,387) — (15,387) — — (2,113) (17,500)
Dividends on preferred stock — — — — — — — — — (2,070) (2,070)

Balance at September 30, 1999 — — 18,111 182 145,365 (17,109) 128,256 (937) — (23,304) 104,197
Net income — — — — — — — — — 13,996 13,996
Repayment of shareholder loans — — — — — — — 25 — — 25
Stock issue costs — — — — (238) — (238) — — — (238)

Balance at September 28, 2000 — — 18,111 182 145,127 (17,109) 128,018 (912) — (9,308) 117,980
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax: 

Net loss — — — — — — — — — (2,656) (2,656)
Amortization of cumulative effect adjustment — — — — — — — — 98 — 98
Unrealized losses on qualifying cash f low hedges — — — — — — — — (3,920) — (3,920)

Other comprehensive loss (6,478)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principal — — — — — — — — (461) — (461)
Repayment of shareholder loans — — — — — — — 75 — — 75
Share repurchase — — (4) (1) (43) — (43) — — — (43)
Exercise of stock options — — 8 1 68 — 68 — — — 68

Balance, September 27, 2001 — $ — 18,115 $182 $145,152 $(17,109) $128,043 $(837) $(4,283) $(11,964) $111,141

(1) Represents excess of amount paid in 1987 leveraged buy-out over net book value for “carryover” shareholders. See Note 1.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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■ ■ ■ ■ ■ September 27, September 28, September 30,
Dollars in Thousands 2001 2000 1999

(52 weeks) (52 weeks) (53 weeks)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss) $ (2,656) $ 13,996 $ 10,416
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Extraordinary loss — — 3,406
Depreciation and amortization 63,545 56,062 42,798
Provision for deferred income taxes 871 8,168 530
Loss on sale of property and equipment 131 1,995 4,484
Provision for environmental expenses (1,859) (1,336) (1,735)
Impairment of long-lived assets 2,298 — —
Fair market value change in non-qualifying derivatives 4,244 — —
Provision for closed stores 1,919 430 —

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:
Receivables (4,860) 1,217 8,741
Inventories 9,469 (2,447) (11,138)
Prepaid expenses 2,121 834 (34)
Other non-current assets 3,048 (1,968) (830)
Accounts payable (7,762) 2,328 22,556
Other current liabilities and accrued expenses 1,194 (2,352) (27,310)
Employment obligations — (496) (448)
Other non-current liabilities 4,999 11,728 17,131

Net cash provided by operating activities 76,702 88,159 68,567

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property held for sale (1,637) (2,094) (178)
Additions to property and equipment (43,582) (56,414) (47,416)
Proceeds from sale-leaseback transactions 3,504 9,470 10,724
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 3,761 7,033 2,366
Acquisitions of related businesses, net of cash acquired (55,993) (106,686) (194,414)

Net cash used in investing activities (93,947) (148,691) (228,918)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal repayments under capital leases (2,070) (1,703) (1,495)
Principal repayments of long-term debt (23,487) (71,284) (184,888)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 40,037 158,000 297,000
Redemption of Series B preferred stock — — (17,500)
Net proceeds from initial public offering — — 72,979
Net proceeds from other equity issues — — 1,068
Accrued dividends paid on preferred stock — — (6,461)
Stock issue costs — (238) —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, net of repurchases 25 — —
Repayment of shareholder loans 75 25 —
Other financing costs (78) (2,071) (3,599)

Net cash provided by financing activities 14,502 82,729 157,104

Net increase (decrease) (2,743) 22,197 (3,247)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 53,354 31,157 34,404

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 50,611 $ 53,354 $ 31,157

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Cash FlowsC O N S O L I D AT E D  S TAT E M E N T S  O F  C A S H  F L O W S
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Note 1—History of Company and Summary of 
Significant Accounting Policies:

The Pantry

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
The Pantry, Inc. (the “Company” or “The Pantry”) and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries. Transactions and balances of each of
these wholly-owned subsidiaries are also immaterial to the con-
solidated financial statements. All intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated in consolidation. The Pantry
owns and operates 1,324 convenience stores in Florida (505),
North Carolina (341), South Carolina (254), Georgia (57),
Kentucky (42), Mississippi (56), Virginia (31), Indiana (16),
Tennessee (14), and Louisiana (8).

During fiscal 1996, Freeman Spogli & Co. (“Freeman Spogli”)
and Chase Manhattan Capital Corporation (“Chase”) acquired 
a controlling interest in the Company through a series of trans-
actions which included the purchase of common stock from 
certain stockholders and the purchase of newly issued common 
and preferred stock. During fiscal years 1997 and 1998, the
Company issued additional shares of common and preferred
stock to existing stockholders and certain directors and execu-
tives of the Company. As of September 27, 2001, Freeman
Spogli owns 10,329,524 shares of common stock and warrants
to purchase 2,346,000 shares of common stock, which represents
beneficial ownership of approximately 62.0% of our outstanding
shares, including shares underlying warrants. Chase and its affili-
ates own 2,209,427 shares of common stock, or 12.2% of our
outstanding shares.

On June 8, 1999, we offered and sold 6,250,000 shares of our
common stock in our initial public offering (the “IPO”). The
initial offering price was $13.00 per share and the Company
received $75.6 million in net proceeds, before expenses. The net
proceeds were used (i) to repay $19.0 million in indebtedness
under the senior credit facility; (ii) to redeem $17.5 million in
outstanding preferred stock and (iii) to pay accrued dividends on
the preferred stock of $6.5 million. Of the remaining $32.6 mil-
lion, $30.2 million was used to fund acquisitions closed during
the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999 and $2.4 million was reserved
to pay fees and expenses associated with the IPO.

Accounting Period

The Pantry operates on a 52- or 53-week fiscal year ending 
on the last Thursday in September. For 2000 and 2001, The
Pantry’s fiscal years contained 52 weeks and for 1999, The
Pantry’s fiscal year contained 53 weeks.

Acquisition Accounting

Generally, our acquisitions are accounted for under the purchase
method of accounting whereby purchase price is allocated 
to assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on fair value.
Excess of purchase price over fair value of net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. Accordingly, the Consolidated Statement

of Operations for the fiscal years presented includes the results 
of operations for each of the acquisitions from the date of acqui-
sition only.

On August 13, 1987, Montrose Pantry Acquisition Corporation
acquired all of our common stock in a leveraged buy-out.
Certain individuals and entities which held an ownership inter-
est retained approximately 45% ownership after the leveraged
buy-out and a new basis of accounting was established which
resulted in a partial step-up in basis. In accordance with EITF
88-16 and to the extent that certain individuals and entities
maintained their equity interests, the excess amount paid over
net book value was recorded as a debit in shareholders’ equity
($17.1 million).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated financial statements, cash and
cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is
determined using the last-in, first-out method for merchandise
inventories and using the first-in, first-out method for gasoline
inventories.

Property Held for Sale

Property is classified as current assets when management’s intent
is to sell these assets in the ensuing fiscal year and is recorded at
the lower of cost or fair value less cost to sell.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization is
provided primarily by the straight-line method over the esti-
mated useful lives of the assets for financial statement purposes
and by accelerated methods for income tax purposes.

Estimated useful lives for f inancial statement purposes are 
as follows:

Buildings 20 to 331⁄2 years
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 3 to 10 years
Automobiles 3 to 5 years

Upon sale or retirement of depreciable assets, the related cost
and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts
and any gain or loss is recognized. Leased buildings capitalized 
in accordance with SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases, are
recorded at the lesser of fair value or the discounted present
value of future lease payments at the inception of the leases.
Amounts capitalized are amortized over the estimated useful
lives of the assets or terms of the leases (generally 5 to 20 years)
using the straight-line method.

NotesN O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D AT E D  F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S
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Goodwill

Goodwill, which represents the excess of purchase price over
fair value of net assets acquired, is amortized on a straight-line
basis over periods of 20 to 40 years (weighted-average useful life
of 30 years). The Pantry considers legal, contractual, regulatory,
obsolescence and competitive factors in determining the useful
life and amortization period of this intangible asset. Additions to
goodwill and increases in goodwill amortization expense prima-
rily relate to our acquisition of the stock or assets of conven-
ience store operators.

The Pantry assesses the recoverability of this intangible asset by
determining whether amortization of the goodwill balance over
its remaining life can be recovered through estimated undis-
counted future operating results. Estimated future results are
based on a trend of historical results for the trailing three fiscal
years and management’s estimate of future results which indicate
that the goodwill balances will be recovered over the various
periods remaining to be benefited.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. When an evaluation is required,
the projected future undiscounted cash f lows due to each store
are compared to the carrying value of the long-lived assets,
including an allocation of goodwill if appropriate, of that store
to determine if a write-down to fair value is required. The
Company recorded a provision of approximately $1.2 million in
fiscal 2001 for asset impairments for certain real estate, leasehold
improvements and store and gasoline equipment at certain
underperforming stores.

Deferred Financing Cost

Deferred financing cost represents expenses related to issuing
The Pantry’s long-term debt, obtaining its lines of credit and
obtaining lease financing. See Note 5—Long-Term Debt and
Note 10—Leases. Such amounts are being amortized over the
remaining term of the respective financing.

Vendor Allowances, Rebates and 
Other Vendor Payments

The Pantry receives payments for vendor allowances, volume
rebates and other supply arrangements in connection with 
various programs. The Pantry records these payments as a reduc-
tion to cost of sales or expenses to which the particular vendor
payment relates. For unearned payments, The Pantry records
deferred income and amortizes the balance, as earned, over the
term of the respective agreement. The amounts recorded against
cost of sales were $54.7 million, $78.6 million and $81.2 million
for fiscal years 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

Environmental Costs

The Pantry accounts for the cost incurred to comply with fed-
eral and state environmental regulations as follows:

• The environmental reserve ref lected in the financial state-
ments is based on internal and external estimates of the costs
to remediate sites relating to the operation of underground
storage tanks. Factors considered in the estimates of the
reserve are the expected cost to remediate each contaminated
site and the estimated length of time to remediate each site.

• Future remediation costs for amounts of deductibles under,
or amounts not covered by, state trust fund programs and
third-party insurance arrangements and for which the timing
of payments can be reasonably estimated are discounted
using a 10% rate. All other environmental costs are provided
for on an undiscounted basis.

• Amounts which are probable of reimbursement under state
trust fund programs or third-party insurers, based on The
Pantry’s experience, are recognized as receivables and are
expected to be collected within a period of twelve to 
eighteen months after the reimbursement claim has been
submitted. These receivables exclude all deductibles and 
an estimate for uncollectible reimbursements. The Pantry’s
reimbursement experience exceeds a 95% collection rate.
The adequacy of the liability and uncollectible receivable
reserve is evaluated quarterly and adjustments are made
based on updated experience at existing sites, newly 
identified sites and changes in governmental policy.

• Annual fees for tank registration and environmental compli-
ance testing are expensed as incurred.

• Expenditures for upgrading tank systems including corrosion
protection, installation of leak detectors and overfill/spill
devices are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining
useful life of the asset or the respective lease term, whichever
is less.

• The tank removal costs associated with locations which The
Pantry plans to sell or dispose of in the near future are esti-
mated annually and a liability is established through a charge
to expense. The costs to remove tanks at active locations are
expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

All operations of The Pantry and its subsidiaries are included in
a consolidated federal income tax return. Pursuant to SFAS No.
109, Accounting for Income Taxes, The Pantry recognizes deferred
tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences
of temporary differences between financial statement carrying
amounts and the related tax basis.

Excise and Use Taxes

The Pantry collects and remits various federal and state excise taxes
on petroleum products. Gasoline sales and cost of sales included
excise taxes of approximately $303.5 million, $419.3 million and
$450.2 million for 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

NotesN O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D AT E D  F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S continued
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Advertising costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense
was approximately $1.7 million, $2.3 million and $2.0 million
for fiscal 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

Stock Based Compensation

The Pantry’s stock option plan is accounted for in accordance
with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees. The Pantry follows the disclosure require-
ments of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

Segment Reporting

In 1999, The Pantry adopted SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, which establishes
annual and interim reporting standards for an enterprise’s busi-
ness segments and related disclosures about its products, services,
geographic areas and major customers. The Pantry operates in
one operating segment.

Reclassif ications

Certain amounts in the fiscal 1999 and 2000 consolidated finan-
cial statements have been reclassified to conform to the fiscal
2001 presentation.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Effective September 29, 2000, we adopted SFAS No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as
amended by SFAS No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative
Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities (‘‘SFAS No. 133’’).
SFAS No. 133, as amended, establishes accounting and reporting
standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative
instruments embedded in other contracts and for hedging activi-
ties. The statement requires that an entity recognize all deriva-
tives as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial
position and measure those instruments at fair value.

As a result of our financing activities, we are exposed to changes
in interest rates, which may adversely affect our results of opera-
tions and financial condition. In seeking to minimize the risk
associated with these activities we have entered into interest rate
swap arrangements, which effectively convert a portion of our
variable rate debt to a fixed rate. The adoption of SFAS No. 133
resulted in a cumulative transition adjustment of approximately
$461 thousand (net of taxes of $289 thousand). The initial 

adoption of SFAS No. 133 did not have a material impact on
our results of operations or financial condition.

Effective September 29, 2000, we also adopted the provisions 
of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting
Bulletin (‘‘SAB’’) No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements. SAB No. 101 clarifies certain existing accounting
principles for the timing of revenue recognition and the classifica-
tion of certain income, expense and balance sheets in the financial
statements. The adoption of SAB No. 101 did not have a mate-
rial impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, which
establishes accounting and reporting standards for all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, and establishes specific
criteria for the recognition of intangible assets separately from
goodwill. SFAS No. 141 eliminates the pooling-of-interest method
of accounting and requires all acquisitions consummated subse-
quent to June 30, 2001, to be accounted for under the purchase
method. The adoption of SFAS No. 141 did not have a material
impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards 
Not Yet Adopted

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets, which addresses financial accounting and
reporting for acquired goodwill and other intangible assets.
SFAS No. 142 eliminates amortization of goodwill and other
intangible assets that are determined to have an indefinite useful
life and instead requires an impairment only approach. At adop-
tion, any goodwill impairment loss will be recognized as the
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principal. Subse-
quently, any impairment losses will be recognized as a compo-
nent of income from operations. As of September 27, 2001, 
we have net goodwill of $277.7 million and have incurred $9.7
million in goodwill amortization in the statement of operations
during fiscal 2001. The adoption of SFAS No. 142 will result in
our discontinuation of goodwill amortization. We will be required
to test goodwill using an impairment method under the new
standard at adoption and at least annually thereafter, which could
have an adverse effect on our future results of operations if an
impairment occurs. As permitted, the Company early adopted
SFAS No. 142 effective September 28, 2001.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations, which addresses financial accounting
and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of
tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs.
SFAS No. 143 requires that the fair value of a liability for an
asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which
it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made.
The associated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the
carrying amount of the long-lived asset. Adoption of SFAS No.
143 is required for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002,
which would be our first quarter of fiscal 2003. We do not
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anticipate the adoption of SFAS No. 143 will have a material
impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. This statement
supercedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of. This state-
ment addresses financial accounting and reporting for the
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. SFAS No. 144 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001,
with earlier application encouraged. We do not anticipate that
the adoption of SFAS No. 144 will have a material impact on
our results of operations and financial condition.

Note 2—Business Acquisitions:
During fiscal 2001, The Pantry acquired 45 convenience stores
located in North Carolina, South Carolina, Louisiana, Mississippi
and Virginia in 9 separate transactions. The transactions were
accounted for by the purchase method of accounting. The 2001
acquisitions were funded from borrowings under the senior
credit facility and cash on hand.

During fiscal 2000, The Pantry acquired 143 convenience stores
located in North Carolina, South Carolina, Florida, Georgia,
Mississippi and Virginia in 18 separate transactions. The transac-
tions were accounted for by the purchase method of accounting.
The 2000 acquisitions were funded from borrowings under the
senior credit facility and cash on hand.

The purchase prices have been allocated to the assets purchased
and the liabilities assumed based upon the fair values on the
dates of the acquisitions, as follows (amounts in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001 2000

ASSETS ACQUIRED:
Receivables, net $ 11 $ 1,464
Inventories 3,195 9,275
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 323 441
Property and equipment 17,931 52,750
Other non-current assets 643 5,203

Total assets acquired 22,103 69,133

LIABILITIES ASSUMED:
Accounts payable—trade — 6,998
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 667 2,039
Environmental remediation liabilities — 25
Other non-current liabilities 1,087 7,325

Total liabilities assumed 1,754 16,387

Net tangible assets acquired 20,349 52,746
Excess of purchase price over fair value of 

net assets acquired 35,644 53,940

Total consideration paid, including direct 
costs, net of cash acquired $55,993 $106,686

The purchase price allocations for certain of the 2001 acquisi-
tions are preliminary estimates, based on available information, 

internal estimates and certain assumptions management believes
are reasonable. Accordingly, the purchase price allocations are
subject to finalization pending the completion of appraisals of
assets acquired. The excess of the purchase prices over fair values
of the net assets acquired for all acquisitions has been recorded as
goodwill, which is being amortized on a straight-line basis over
30 years.

The following unaudited pro forma information presents a sum-
mary of consolidated results of operations of The Pantry and
acquired businesses as if the 2001 transactions occurred at the
beginning of the fiscal year for each of the periods presented
(amounts in thousands, except per share data):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001 2000

Total revenues $2,674,283 $2,540,850
Net income (loss) $ (2,245) $ 14,880
Earnings per share:

Basic $ (0.12) $ 0.82

Diluted $ (0.12) $ 0.79

Note 3—Inventories:

At September 28, 2000 and September 27, 2001, inventories
consisted of the following (in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001 2000

Inventories at FIFO cost:
Merchandise $ 73,861 $ 70,461
Gasoline 21,765 28,806

95,626 99,267
Less adjustment to LIFO cost:

Merchandise (13,939) (11,305)

Inventories at LIFO cost $ 81,687 $ 87,962

The positive effect on cost of sales of LIFO inventory liquida-
tions was $53 thousand, $4 thousand and $2.2 million for fiscal
years 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

Note 4—Property and Equipment:
At September 28, 2000 and September 27, 2001, property and
equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001 2000

Land $ 85,222 $ 86,568
Buildings 138,425 129,643
Equipment 368,602 345,240
Leasehold improvements 66,156 57,811
Construction in progress 9,307 9,749

667,712 629,011
Less—accumulated depreciation 

and amortization (197,034) (162,044)

Property and equipment, net $ 470,678 $ 466,967

NotesN O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D AT E D  F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S continued



The Pantry, Inc. Annual Report 2001

28 &

29

Note 5—Long-Term Debt:
At September 28, 2000 and September 27, 2001, long-term
debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001 2000

Senior subordinated notes payable; 
due October 15, 2007; interest 
payable semi-annually at 10.25% $200,000 $200,000

Term loan facility—Tranche A; interest 
payable monthly at LIBOR plus 3.0%; 
principal due in quarterly installments 
through January 31, 2004 45,906 61,906

Term loan facility—Tranche B; interest 
payable monthly at LIBOR plus 3.5%; 
principal due in quarterly installments 
through January 31, 2006 178,079 179,973

Term loan facility—Tranche C; interest 
payable monthly at LIBOR plus 3.75%; 
principal due in quarterly installments 
through January 31, 2006 73,875 74,625

Acquisition facility; interest payable 
monthly at LIBOR plus 3.0%; principal 
due in quarterly installments beginning 
April 30, 2001 through January 31, 2004 45,500 10,000

Note payable; zero (0.0%) interest, with 
principal due in annual installments 
through February 26, 2003 593 891

Other notes payable; various interest rates 
and maturity dates 222 230

544,175 527,625
Less—current maturities (40,000) (20,650)

Long-term debt, net of current maturities $504,175 $506,975

The senior subordinated notes contain covenants that, among
other things, restrict the ability of The Pantry and any restricted
subsidiary to (i) incur additional debt; (ii) pay dividends or make
distributions; (iii) issue stock of subsidiaries; (iv) make certain
investments or repurchase stock; (v) create liens; (vi) enter into
transactions with affiliates or sale-leaseback transactions and 
(vii) merge or consolidate The Pantry or any of its subsidiaries
or sell or transfer assets. The senior subordinated notes also con-
tain financial ratios and tests which must be met with respect to
minimum coverage and leverage ratios, pro forma cash f low 
and capital expenditures.

At September 27, 2001, The Pantry has a senior credit facility
which consists of a $45.0 million revolving credit facility available
for working capital financing, general corporate purposes and
issuing commercial and standby letters of credit and $390 million
in term loans. The LIBOR associated with our senior credit
facility resets monthly and as of September 27, 2001 was 2.61%.

In connection with entering into the senior credit facility in fiscal
1999, The Pantry redeemed $49.0 million in principal amount
of senior notes and paid accrued and unpaid interest up to, but
not including, the date of purchase and a 4% call premium.
The Pantry recognized an extraordinary loss of approximately

$3.6 million in connection with the repurchase of the senior
notes including the payment of the 4% call premium of $2.0
million, fees paid in connection with the amendments and com-
mitments under the senior credit facility, and the write-off of
deferred financing costs related to the repayment of The
Company’s former bank credit facility.

As of September 27, 2001, there were outstanding letters of
credit of $12.9 million issued under the revolving credit facility
and $32.1 million in available credit.

The senior credit facility contains covenants restricting the ability
of The Pantry and any of its subsidiaries to, among other things,
(i) incur additional indebtedness; (ii) declare dividends or redeem
or repurchase capital stock; (iii) prepay, redeem or purchase debt;
(iv) incur liens; (v) make loans and investments; (vi) make capital
expenditures; (vii) engage in mergers, acquisitions or asset sales
and (viii) engage in transactions with affiliates. The senior credit
facility also contains financial ratios and tests which must be 
met with respect to minimum coverage and leverage ratios, pro
forma cash f low, maximum business acquisition expenditures
and maximum capital expenditures.

For the twelve month period ending September 27, 2001, The
Pantry did not satisfy two financial covenants required by our
senior credit facility. The Pantry has since received a waiver
from its senior credit group and on November 7, 2001, entered
into an amendment to the senior credit facility that includes,
among other things, a modification to financial covenants and
increases the f loating interest rate spread by 50 basis points as
long as its debt ratio is greater than 4.5:1, reducing to 25 basis
points when the debt ratio is less than 4.5:1.

As of September 27, 2001, substantially all of The Pantry’s and
its subsidiaries’ net assets are restricted as to payment of divi-
dends and other distributions.

The Pantry’s long-term debt maturities for each of the five years
following September 27, 2001 and thereafter are: $40.0 million in
2002; $43.2 million in 2003; $52.9 million in 2004; $88.7 million
in 2005; $119.2 million in 2006 and $200.2 million thereafter.

The fair value of the Company’s indebtness approximated
$539.1 million at September 27, 2001.

Note 6—Derivative Financial Instruments and 
Other Comprehensive Loss:

On September 29, 2000, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (‘‘SFAS’’) No. 133, Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, which requires that 
all derivatives be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value.
Upon adoption on September 29, 2000, the cumulative transi-
tion adjustment was approximately $461 thousand (net of taxes
of $289 thousand).

The Company enters into interest rate swap and collar agree-
ments to modify the interest characteristics of its outstanding
long-term debt and has designated each qualifying instrument as
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a cash f low hedge. The Company formally documents its hedge
relationships, including identifying the hedge instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and
strategies for entering into the hedge transaction. At hedge
inception, and at least quarterly thereafter, the Company assesses
whether derivatives used to hedge transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in the cash f low of the hedged item. The
Company measures effectiveness by the ability of the interest rate
swaps to offset cash f lows associated with changes in the variable
LIBOR rate associated with its term loan facilities using the
hypothetical derivative method. To the extent the instruments
are considered to be effective, changes in fair value are recorded as
a component of other comprehensive income. To the extent the
instruments are considered ineffective, any changes in fair value
relating to the ineffective portion are immediately recognized in
earnings (interest expense). When it is determined that a derivative
ceases to be a highly effective hedge, the Company discontinues
hedge accounting, and any gains or losses on the derivative
instrument are recognized in earnings. Interest expense of $4.2
million was recorded in fiscal 2001 for both the ineffective por-
tion of the cash f low hedges and the mark-to-market adjustment
of those instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting.

The fair values of the Company’s interest rate swaps and collars
are obtained from dealer quotes. These values represent the esti-
mated amount the Company would receive or pay to terminate
the agreement taking into consideration the difference between
the contract rate of interest and rates currently quoted for agree-
ments of similar terms and maturities. At September 27, 2001,
other accrued liabilities and other non-current liabilities include
$4.8 million and $6.5 million, respectively, of derivative liabilities.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive deficit,
net of related taxes, are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Cumulative effect of adoption of SFAS No. 133, 
net of taxes of $289 $ (461)

Amortization reclassified into other comprehensive  
deficit, net of taxes of $61 98

Unrealized losses on qualifying cash f low hedges, 
net of taxes of $2,553 (3,920)

Accumulated other comprehensive deficit $(4,283)

The components of comprehensive loss, net of related taxes, for
fiscal 2001, the first year the Company incurred any items of com-
prehensive income (loss), are as follows (amounts in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001

Net loss applicable to common shareholders $(2,656)
Amortization of cumulative effect 98
Unrealized losses on qualifying cash f low hedges (3,920)

Comprehensive loss $(6,478)

Note 7—Restructuring and Other Charges:
During the quarter ended March 29, 2001, the Company announced
a plan designed to strengthen its organizational structure and

reduce operating costs by centralizing corporate administrative
functions. The plan included closing an administrative facility
located in Jacksonville, Florida, and integrating key marketing,
finance and administrative activities into the Company’s corpo-
rate headquarters located in Sanford, North Carolina. The
Company expects that this integration, which was completed
during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, will reduce pre-tax
operating expenses beginning in fiscal 2002. Effective June 28,
2001, the Company completed the merger of Lil’ Champ Food
Stores, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary, into The Pantry. The
Company anticipates this merger will provide for more efficient
and streamlined operations.

As a result of this plan, the Company recorded a pre-tax restruc-
turing charge of $2.9 million during fiscal 2001. The restructur-
ing charge consisted of $1.7 million of employee termination
benefits, $650 thousand of lease obligations, and $490 thousand
of legal and other professional consultant fees. During fiscal
2001, the Company has also incurred and expended $1.9 million
in other non-recurring charges for related actions. The other
non-recurring charges were one-time expenses as a result of 
this restructuring plan and included charges for the following: 
(i) relocation and staffing; (ii) non-capital systems integration;
(iii) travel; (iv) impairments related to property and equipment
and (v) other miscellaneous costs. Employee termination benefits
represent severance and outplacement benefits for 100 employ-
ees, 49 of which are in administrative positions and 51 of which
are in managerial positions. Lease obligations represent remain-
ing lease payments in excess of estimated sublease rentals for the
Jacksonville facility. Activity related to the restructuring charges
was as follows (amounts in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ Total 2001 Cash Non-cash
Expense Outlays Write-offs Reserve

Employee termination $1,736 $ 943 $ — $ 793
Lease termination 650 47 — 603
Legal and other professional 490 341 — 149

Total restructuring reserve $2,876 $1,331 $ — $1,545
Other non-recurring charges 1,895 845 1,050 —

Total restructuring and 
other charges $4,771 $2,176 $1,050 $1,545

Note 8—Interest Expense:
The components of interest expense are as follows (amounts 
in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001 2000 1999

Interest on long-term debt $50,652 $50,968 $39,565
Fair market value change in 

non-qualifying derivatives 4,244 — —
Interest on capital lease 

obligations 1,936 1,631 1,596
Interest rate swap settlements 1,822 (318) —
Miscellaneous 77 48 119

$58,731 $52,329 $41,280

NotesN O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D AT E D  F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S continued
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Note 9—Income Taxes:

The components of income tax expense are summarized below
(in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001 2000 1999

Current:
Federal $ — $ 2,444 $ 7,093
State — 164 800

$ — 2,608 7,893

Deferred:
Federal 776 7,279 2,488
State 95 889 369

871 8,168 2,857

$871 $10,776 $10,750

As of September 28, 2000 and September 27, 2001, deferred tax
liabilities (assets) are comprised of the following (in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001 2000

Depreciation $ 58,833 $ 50,565
Inventories 3,500 3,640
Amortization 3,333 954
Miscellaneous expenses 2,653 2,323
Environmental expenses 906 27
Other 109 517

Gross deferred tax liabilities 69,334 58,026

Capital lease obligations (2,050) (1,609)
Allowance for doubtful accounts (56) (464)
Accrued insurance (3,331) (3,716)
Accrued compensation (557) (156)
Derivative liabilities (2,781) —
Deferred income (4,600) (1,212)
Accrued vacation (787) (439)
Reserve for closed stores (1,730) (1,722)
Restructuring reserve (782) —
Other (767) (531)

Gross deferred tax assets (17,441) (9,849)
Net operating loss carryforwards (13,458) (7,992)
General business credits (1,833) (1,833)
AMT credits (5,705) (5,914)

$ 30,897 $ 32,438

As of September 28, 2000 and September 27, 2001, net current
deferred income tax assets totaled $2.1 million and $2.6 million,
respectively, and net non-current deferred income tax liabilities
totaled $34.5 million and $33.5 million, respectively.

Reconciliations of income taxes at the federal statutory rate
(34%) to actual taxes provided are as follows (in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001 2000 1999

Tax expense (benefit) at federal 
statutory rate $ (607) $ 8,422 $ 8,415

Tax expense at state rate, net of 
federal income tax expense — 1,013 1,188

Permanent differences:
Amortization of goodwill 1,320 1,161 1,081
Other 158 180 66

Net income tax expense $ 871 $10,776 $10,750

As of September 27, 2001, The Pantry had net operating loss
carryforwards, general business credits and AMT credits which
can be used to offset future federal income taxes. The benefit 
of these carryforwards is recognized as deferred tax assets. The
Pantry believes that it is more likely than not that these future
tax benefits will be utilized before their expiration through
future reversal of existing taxable differences and future earnings.
Loss carryforwards as of September 27, 2001 have the following
expiration dates (in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ Federal State

2009 $ — $ 3,158
2010 — 2,974
2011 — 10,919
2012 1,264 5,101
2013 — 13,274
2014 — 5,162
2015 — 5,841
2016 — 13,928
2017 9,374 —
2018 5,662 —
2019 — —
2020 13,928 —

Total loss carryforwards $30,228 $60,357

Note 10—Leases:

The Pantry leases store buildings, office facilities and store
equipment under both capital and operating leases. The asset
balances related to capital leases at September 28, 2000 and
September 27, 2001 are as follows (in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001 2000

Buildings $18,138 $12,965
Less—accumulated amortization (4,882) (1,976)

$13,256 $10,989

Amortization expense related to capitalized leased assets approxi-
mated $1.3 million in each of fiscal 1999, 2000 and 2001.
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Future minimum lease payments as of September 27, 2001 for
capital leases and operating leases that have initial or remaining
terms in excess of one year are as follows (in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ Capital Operating
Fiscal Year Leases Leases

2002 $ 3,086 $ 49,994
2003 3,013 48,929
2004 2,840 47,390
2005 2,515 45,139
2006 2,284 42,590
Thereafter 18,186 366,129

Net minimum lease payments $31,924 $600,171

Amount representing interest (8% to 20%) 16,541

Present value of net minimum lease payments 15,383
Less—current maturities 1,363

$14,020

Rental expense for operating leases was approximately $40.6
million, $50.9 million and $53.2 million for fiscal years 1999,
2000 and 2001, respectively. Some of The Pantry’s leases require
contingent rental payments; such amounts are not material for
the fiscal years presented.

During fiscal 1999, 2000 and 2001, The Pantry entered into
sale-leaseback transactions with unrelated parties with net proceeds
of $10.7 million, $9.5 million and $3.5 million, respectively. The
assets sold in these transactions consisted of newly constructed or
acquired convenience stores. The Pantry retained ownership of
all personal property and gasoline marketing equipment at these
locations. The net proceeds from these transactions approximated
the carrying value of the assets at the time of sale; accordingly, any
gains or losses recognized on these transactions were insignificant
for all periods presented. Generally, the leases are operating leases
at market rates with terms of twenty years with four five-year
renewal options.

Note 11—Commitments and Contingencies:

As of September 27, 2001, The Pantry was contingently liable
for outstanding letters of credit in the amount of $12.9 million
related primarily to several areas in which The Pantry is self-
insured. The letters of credit are not to be drawn against unless
The Pantry defaults on the timely payment of related liabilities.

The Pantry is involved in certain legal actions arising in the 
normal course of business. In the opinion of management, based
on a review of such legal proceedings, the ultimate outcome of
these actions will not have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

Unamortized Liabilities Associated with 
Vendor Payments

In accordance with the terms of each service or supply agree-
ment and in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, service and supply

allowances are amortized over the life of each agreement in
accordance with the specific terms. The unamortized liabilities
associated with these payments as of September 28, 2000 and
September 27, 2001, were $58.9 million and $63.9 million,
respectively.

McLane Company, Inc. (“McLane”)—The Pantry purchases
over 50% of its general merchandise from a single wholesaler,
McLane, a subsidiary of Wal-Mart, Inc. The Pantry’s arrangement
with McLane is governed by a five-year distribution service
agreement. The Pantry receives annual service allowances based
on the number of stores operating on each contract anniversary
date. If The Pantry were to default under the contract or termi-
nate the distribution service agreement prior to March 28, 2003,
The Pantry must reimburse McLane the unearned, unamortized
portion of the service allowance payments received to date. In
accordance with the terms of the distribution service agreement
and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
the original service allowances received and all future service
allowances are amortized to cost of goods sold on a straight-line
method over the life of the agreement.

Major Oil Companies—The Pantry has entered into product
purchase agreements with numerous oil companies to buy speci-
fied quantities of gasoline at market prices. The length of these
contracts range from five to thirteen years and in some cases
include minimum annual purchase requirements. In connection
with these agreements, The Pantry may receive upfront vendor
allowances, volume incentive payments and other vendor assis-
tance payments. If The Pantry were to default under the terms
of any contract or terminate the supply agreement prior to the
end of the initial term, The Pantry must reimburse the respec-
tive oil company for the unearned, unamortized portion of the
payments received to date. In accordance with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the United States of America, these
payments are amortized using the specific amortization periods
in accordance with the terms of each agreement, either using
the straight-line method or based on gasoline volume purchased.

Environmental Liabilities and Contingencies

The Pantry is subject to various federal, state and local environ-
mental laws and regulations governing underground petroleum
storage tanks that require The Pantry to make certain expendi-
tures for compliance. In particular, at the federal level, the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended,
requires the EPA to establish a comprehensive regulatory pro-
gram for the detection, prevention, and cleanup of leaking
underground storage tanks. Regulations enacted by the EPA in
1988 established requirements for:

• installing underground storage tank systems

• upgrading underground storage tank systems

• taking corrective action in response to releases

• closing underground storage tank systems

• keeping appropriate records
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• maintaining evidence of financial responsibility for taking
corrective action and compensating third parties for bodily
injury and property damage resulting from releases

In addition to the technical standards, The Pantry is required by
federal and state regulations to maintain evidence of financial
responsibility for taking corrective action and compensating
third parties in the event of a release from its underground stor-
age tank systems. In order to comply with this requirement, 
The Pantry maintains surety bonds in the aggregate amount of
approximately $2.0 million in favor of state environmental agen-
cies in the states of North Carolina, Virginia, South Carolina,
Georgia, Tennessee, Indiana, Kentucky and Louisiana. The
Pantry also relies on reimbursements from applicable state trust
funds. In Florida and Georgia, The Pantry meets such financial
responsibility requirements by state trust fund coverage through
December 31, 1998 and met such requirements thereafter
through private commercial liability insurance. In Mississippi, 
we meet our financial responsibility requirements through 
coverage under the state trust fund.

All states in which The Pantry operates or has operated under-
ground storage tank systems have established trust funds for the
sharing, recovering and reimbursing of certain cleanup costs and
liabilities incurred as a result of releases from underground stor-
age tank systems. These trust funds, which essentially provide
insurance coverage for the cleanup of environmental damages
caused by the operation of underground storage tank systems,
are funded by an underground storage tank registration fee and a
tax on the wholesale purchase of motor fuels within each state.
The Pantry has paid underground storage tank registration fees
and gasoline taxes to each state where it operates to participate
in these programs and has filed claims and received reimburse-
ment in North Carolina, South Carolina, Kentucky, Indiana,
Florida, Georgia and Tennessee. The coverage afforded by each
state fund varies but generally provides up to $1.0 million per
site or occurrence for the cleanup of environmental contamina-
tion, and most provide coverage for third-party liabilities.

In addition to immaterial amounts to be spent by The Pantry, a
substantial amount will be expended for remediation on behalf
of The Pantry by state trust funds established in The Pantry’s
operating areas or other responsible third parties (including
insurers). To the extent such third parties do not pay for reme-
diation as anticipated by The Pantry, The Pantry will be obli-
gated to make such payments, which could materially adversely
affect The Pantry’s financial condition and results of operations.
Reimbursement from state trust funds will be dependent upon
the maintenance and continued solvency of the various funds.

Environmental reserves of $14.1 million and $12.2 million as of
September 28, 2000 and September 27, 2001, respectively, rep-
resent estimates for future expenditures for remediation, tank
removal and litigation associated with 535 known contaminated 

sites, respectively, as a result of releases (e.g., overfills, spills and
underground storage tank releases) and are based on current 
regulations, historical results and certain other factors. As of
September 27, 2001, the current average remediation cost per
site is approximately $70 thousand. Remediation costs for
known sites are expected to be incurred over the next one to
ten years. Environmental reserves have been established on an
undiscounted basis with remediation costs based on internal and
external estimates for each site. Future remediation costs for
amounts of deductibles under, or amounts not covered by, state
trust fund programs and third-party insurance arrangements and
for which the timing of payments can be reasonably estimated
are discounted using a 10% rate. The undiscounted amount 
of future estimated payments for which The Pantry does not
expect to be reimbursed for each of the five years and thereafter
at September 27, 2001 are as follows (in thousands):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ Expected
Fiscal Year Payments

2002 $ 1,023
2003 286
2004 256
2005 153
2006 34
Thereafter 63

Total undiscounted amounts not covered by a third party 1,815
Other current cost amounts 14,996
Amount representing interest (10%) (2,789)

Environmental reserve $12,207

The Pantry anticipates that it will be reimbursed for a portion of
these expenditures from state trust funds and private insurance.
As of September 27, 2001, anticipated reimbursements of $10.4
million are recorded as long-term environmental receivables.
In Florida, remediation of such contamination reported before
January 1, 1999 will be performed by the state and substantially
all of the costs will be paid by the state trust fund. The Pantry
will perform remediation in other states through independent
contractor firms engaged by The Pantry. For certain sites the
trust fund does not cover a deductible or has a co-pay which
may be less than the cost of such remediation. Although The
Pantry is not aware of releases or contamination at other loca-
tions where it currently operates or has operated stores, any such
releases or contamination could require substantial remediation
expenditures, some or all of which may not be eligible for reim-
bursement from state trust funds.

Several of the locations identified as contaminated are being
cleaned up by third parties who have indemnified The Pantry 
as to responsibility for cleanup matters. Additionally, The Pantry
is awaiting closure notices on several other locations which will
release The Pantry from responsibility related to known contam-
ination at those sites. These sites continue to be included in our
environmental reserve until a final closure notice is received.
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Note 12—Benefit Plans:
The Pantry sponsors a 401(k) Employee Retirement Savings
Plan for eligible employees. Employees must be at least nineteen
years of age and have one year of service with at least 1,000
hours worked to be eligible to participate in the plan. Employees
may contribute up to 15% of their annual compensation, and
contributions are matched by The Pantry on the basis of 50% of
the first 5% contributed. Matching contribution expense was
$573 thousand, $687 thousand and $718 thousand for fiscal years
1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

Note 13—Common Stock:

On June 4, 1999, the Company effected a 51 for 1 stock split 
of its common stock. In connection with the stock split, the
number of authorized shares of common stock was increased 
to 50,000,000 (300,000 shares previously). The accompanying
financial statements give effect to the stock split, retroactively
applied to all periods presented. There was no change in par 
values of the common stock as a result of the stock split.

On June 8, 1999, the Company completed an initial public
offering of 6,250,000 shares of its common stock at a public
offering price of $13.00 per share (the “IPO”). The net pro-
ceeds from the IPO of $75.6 million, before expenses, were
used (i) to repay $19.0 million in indebtedness under the 1999
bank credit facility; (ii) to redeem $17.5 million in outstanding
preferred stock and (iii) to pay accrued dividends on the pre-
ferred stock of $6.5 million. Of the remaining $32.6 million,
$30.2 million was used to fund acquisitions closed during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 1999 and $2.4 million was reserved to
pay fees and expenses associated with the IPO.

Upon completion of the IPO, Freeman Spogli owned approxi-
mately 9,349,524 shares and owned warrants for the purchase of
an additional 2,346,000 shares, giving Freeman Spogli beneficial
ownership of approximately 57.2% of the outstanding common
stock (including shares underlying warrants). During fiscal 2000,
Freeman Spogli purchased an additional 980,000 shares giving
them beneficial ownership of approximately 62.0% of the out-
standing common stock (including shares underlying warrants).

Note 14—Preferred Stock:
Issued and outstanding shares of preferred stock at September
24, 1998 included 17,500 shares designated as Series B, all of
which were held by the Freeman Spogli entities. On June 8,
1999, in conjunction with the IPO, The Pantry redeemed 
the outstanding preferred stock for $17.5 million and paid
accrued dividends on the preferred stock of $6.5 million.
As of September 27, 2001, the Company has no preferred 
stock issued or outstanding.

Upon the redemption of its Series B preferred stock, The Pantry
recorded a one-time dividend of $613 thousand which represents
the difference between the gross proceeds ($16.9 million) from the 
initial sale of Series B preferred stock and the consideration paid
upon redemption ($17.5 million). In accordance with Emerging
Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Topic No. D-42, The Pantry was
also required to recognize a one-time deduction to net income
applicable to common stockholders (and a related reclassification
to accumulated deficit) in the amount of $1.5 million associated
with original issue costs incurred in connection with the issuance
of the Series B preferred stock in December 1996. At that time,
the original issue costs were netted against the gross proceeds
and, thus, charged to additional paid in capital. EITF D-42
requires that the excess of fair value of the consideration trans-
ferred to the preferred stockholders over the carrying amount of
the preferred stock be subtracted from net income applicable to
common stockholders in the calculation of earnings per share.

Note 15—Stock Options and Other Equity Instruments:
On January 1, 1998, The Pantry adopted an incentive and non-
qualified stock option plan. Pursuant to the provisions of the
plan, options may be granted to officers, key employees and
consultants of The Pantry or any of its subsidiaries and certain
members of the board of directors to purchase up to 1,275,000
shares of The Pantry’s common stock. The plan is administered
by the board of directors or a committee of the board of direc-
tors. Options are granted at prices determined by the board of
directors and may be exercisable in one or more installments.
Additionally, the terms and conditions of awards under the plan
may differ from one grant to another. Under the plan, incentive
stock options may only be granted to employees with an exercise
price at least equal to the fair market value of the related common
stock on the date the option is granted. Fair values are based on
the most recent common stock sales. During 1998, options to
acquire 576,861 shares of common stock were granted under
the plan with exercise prices ranging from $8.82-$11.27 per
share (weighted-average exercise price of $9.39 per share).

On June 3, 1999, The Pantry adopted a new 1999 stock option
plan providing for the grant of incentive stock options and non-
qualified stock options to officers, directors, employees and con-
sultants, with provisions similar to the 1998 stock option plan.
During 1999, options to acquire 240,000 shares of common
stock were granted under the 1999 plan with exercise prices of
$13.00 per share. These options vest over three years and have
contractual lives of seven years. No options were granted during
the year ended September 28, 2000. During 2001, options to
acquire 328,000 shares of common stock were granted under
the 1999 plan with exercise prices of $10.00 per share. Subse-
quent to September 27, 2001, The Pantry granted options to
acquire 200,000 shares of common stock under the 1999 plan
with exercise prices of $5.12 per share. These options vest over
three years and have contractual lives of seven years.
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All options granted in 1999 and 2000 vest over a three-year
period, with one-third of each grant vesting on the anniversary
of the initial grant. There were no exercises, forfeitures, or expi-
rations of options in 1999. There were 4,000 options forfeited
and none exercised or expired during fiscal 2000. There were
328,000 options granted, 7,700 options exercised, 111,878
options forfeited, and none that expired during fiscal 2001. All
stock options are granted at estimated fair market value of the
common stock at the grant date.

Had compensation cost for the plan been determined consistent
with SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, The
Pantry’s pro forma net income (loss) for fiscal 1999, 2000 and
2001 would have been approximately $10.3 million, $13.8 million
and $(2.9 million), respectively. Pro forma basic earnings (loss)
per share for fiscal 1999, 2000 and 2001 would have been $0.44,
$0.76 and $(0.16), respectively. Pro forma diluted earnings (loss)
per share for fiscal 1999, 2000 and 2001 would have been $0.40,
$0.73 and $(0.16), respectively. The fair value of each option
grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001 1999

Weighted-average grant date fair value $3.93 $2.07
Weighted-average expected lives (years) 2.00 2.00
Weighted-average grant date fair value—

exercise price equals market price $3.93 $2.24
Weighted-average grant date fair value—

exercise price greater than market price — $1.18
Risk-free interest rate 4.94% 5.5%
Expected volatility 66.36% 0.00%–21.0%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%

On August 31, 1998, The Pantry adopted a stock subscription
plan. The subscription plan allows The Pantry to offer to certain
employees the right to purchase shares of common stock at a
purchase price equal to the fair market value on the date of pur-
chase. A purchaser may not sell, transfer or pledge their shares

• prior to the first anniversary of the date on which the 
purchaser acquires the shares, or

• after the first anniversary, except in compliance with the
provisions of the subscription agreement and a pledge agree-
ment if part of the consideration for such shares includes a
secured promissory note

In the event that the purchaser’s employment with The Pantry and
all of its subsidiaries terminates for any reason, The Pantry has
the option to repurchase from the purchaser all or any portion
of the shares acquired by the purchaser under the subscription
agreement for a period of six months after the effective date of
such termination. The repurchase option terminates upon the
later to occur of

• the first anniversary of the date the shares were originally
acquired, or

• an initial public offering of common stock by The Pantry
registered under the Securities Act (other than an offering
registered on Form S-4 or Form S-8) resulting in gross 
proceeds to The Pantry in excess of $25 million

After the first anniversary of the date the shares were originally
acquired by the purchaser, the purchaser may transfer the shares
for cash (only) to a third party, subject to The Pantry’s right of
first refusal with respect to such sale. Finally, under certain cir-
cumstances, a purchaser of shares under the stock subscription
plan may be forced to sell all or part of the shares purchased
under such plan if Freeman Spogli finds a third-party buyer for
all or part of the shares of common stock held by Freeman
Spogli. No issuances of shares under the stock subscription plan
had been made at September 24, 1998. On September 25, 1998
and November 30, 1999, 134,436 shares, net of subsequent
repurchases of 6,273 shares, were sold under the stock subscrip-
tion plan. These shares were sold at fair value ($11.27), as deter-
mined by the most recent equity investment ( July 1998). In
connection with these sales, The Pantry received $722 thousand
of secured promissory notes receivable, bearing an interest rate
of 8.5%, due August 31, 2003.

In December 1996, in connection with its purchase of 17,500
shares of Series B preferred stock, Freeman Spogli acquired war-
rants to purchase 2,346,000 shares of common stock. The war-
rants are exercisable at $7.45 per share until December 30, 2006,
and contain adjustment provisions in the event The Pantry
declares dividends or distributions, makes stock splits, or engages
in mergers, reorganizations or reclassifications. The fair value of
the warrants at date of issuance approximated $600 thousand and
is included in additional paid-in capital. None of these warrants
had been exercised at September 27, 2001.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at September 27, 2001:

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ Number 
Outstanding at Weighted-Average Number of 
September 27, Remaining Options Weighted-Average

Exercise Prices Date Issued 2001 Contractual Life Exercisable Exercise Price

$ 8.82 1/1/98 396,423 6 years 396,423 $ 8.82
$11.27 8/25/98 120,360 6 years 120,360 $11.27
$13.00 6/8/99, 9/30/99 207,000 5 years 138,000 $13.00
$10.00 12/29/00 297,500 7 years 0 $10.00

Total 1,021,283 654,783
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Note 16—Related Parties:
Transactions With Affiliates

Stock Issuances

In December 1996, Freeman Spogli purchased 17,500 shares of
Series B preferred stock and warrants to purchase 2,346,000 shares
of common stock for approximately $17.5 million. The purchase
price for the Series B preferred stock was $1,000.00 per share and
the purchase price for each of the two warrants was $1.00. The
warrants are exercisable at $7.45 per share until December 30,
2006 and contain adjustment provisions in the event The Pantry
declares dividends or distributions, makes stock splits or engages in
mergers, reorganizations or reclassifications. In connection with
the IPO, The Pantry repurchased the Series B preferred stock
from Freeman Spogli for $17.5 million, plus approximately $6.5
million in accrued dividends. See also Note 14—Preferred Stock.

In October 1997, in connection with the Lil’ Champ acquisi-
tion, Freeman Spogli purchased 3,030,471 shares of common
stock and Chase purchased 596,190 shares of common stock for
an aggregate purchase price of approximately $32.0 million.
Peter J. Sodini, The Pantry’s Chief Executive Officer, purchased
45,339 shares of common stock for an aggregate purchase price
of $400 thousand, payable $185 thousand in cash and $215
thousand in the form of a secured promissory note. The pur-
chase price for the common stock was $8.82 per share. At that
time, all of the outstanding Series A preferred stock was con-
tributed back to The Pantry and cancelled.

In July 1998, in connection with the acquisition of Quick Stop and
the acquisition of Stallings, Freeman Spogli purchased 1,845,690
shares of common stock and Chase purchased 371,688 shares of
common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $25.0 million.
The purchase price for the common stock was $11.27 per share.

In November 1998, Peter Starrett, a director of The Pantry,
purchased 22,185 shares of common stock for a purchase price
of $250 thousand. Freeman Spogli has the right to require the
sale of Mr. Starrett’s shares in the event it sells all of its holdings
of common stock.

Stockholders’ Agreement

The Pantry has a stockholders’ agreement, as amended July
1998, with Freeman Spogli, Chase and Peter J. Sodini in which:

• Freeman Spogli has a right of first offer enabling it to purchase
shares held by Chase or Mr. Sodini prior to transfers of
shares of common stock to non-affiliates, other than trans-
fers pursuant to a registration statement or under Rule 144

• Freeman Spogli has the right to require Chase and Mr.
Sodini to sell their shares of common stock to a third-party
buyer on the same terms as Freeman Spogli if Freeman
Spogli is selling all of its shares

• Freeman Spogli, Chase and Mr. Sodini have rights to be
included in sales of common stock by the other stockholders

• Freeman Spogli has agreed, as long as Chase holds 10% of
The Pantry’s common stock, to vote for a director nomi-
nated by Chase

• Transactions with affiliates will be on terms no less favor-
able to The Pantry than would be obtained in an arm’s
length transaction

Note 17—Earnings Per Share:
The Pantry computes earnings per share data in accordance with
the requirements of SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share. Basic
earnings per share is computed on the basis of the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings
per share is computed on the basis of the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding plus the effect of out-
standing warrants and stock options using the “treasury stock”
method. The following table ref lects the calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per share (see also Note 14—Preferred Stock)
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001 2000 1999

Net income (loss) applicable to 
common shareholders:
Net income (loss) before 

extraordinary loss $ (2,656) $13,996 $14,000
Preferred stock dividend 

requirement — — (2,070)
Redemption of preferred 

stock in excess of carrying 
amount — — (2,113)

Net income (loss) applicable 
to common shareholders 
before extraordinary loss (2,656) 13,996 9,817

Extraordinary loss — — (3,584)

Net income (loss) applicable 
to common shareholders (2,656) $13,996 $ 6,233

Earnings per share—basic:
Weighted-average shares 

outstanding 18,113 18,111 13,768

Income (loss) before 
extraordinary loss per 
share—basic $ (0.15) $ 0.77 $ 0.71

Extraordinary loss per 
share—basic — — (0.26)

Net income (loss) per 
share—basic $ (0.15) $ 0.77 $ 0.45

Earnings per share—diluted:
Weighted-average shares 

outstanding 18,113 18,111 13,768
Dilutive impact of options 

and warrants outstanding — 821 1,308

Weighted-average shares and 
potential dilutive shares
outstanding 18,113 18,932 15,076

Income (loss) before 
extraordinary loss per 
share—diluted $ (0.15) $ 0.74 $ 0.65

Extraordinary loss per 
share—diluted — — (0.24)

Net income (loss) per 
share—diluted $ (0.15) $ 0.74 $ 0.41

Options and warrants to purchase shares of common stock that
were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per
share, because their inclusion would have been antidilutive, were
372,363 and 3,367,283 for 2000 and 2001, respectively.
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Note 18—Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited):
Summary quarterly financial data for fiscal 2000 and 2001, respectively, is as follows (dollars in thousands, except per share amounts):

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ Year Ended September 27, 2001 Year Ended September 28, 2000

First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

Total revenue $634,243 $635,703 $707,957 $665,141 $2,643,044 $540,191 $583,819 $642,935 $664,239 $2,431,184
Gross profit $118,945 $116,260 $128,796 $123,642 $ 487,643 $108,157 $104,624 $124,166 $131,417 $ 468,364
Income (loss) before

income taxes and
extraordinary loss $ 3,374 $ (8,651) $ 6,584 $ (3,092) $ (1,785) $ 4,063 $ (4,514) $ 11,046 $ 14,177 $ 24,772

Net income (loss) $ 1,907 $ (4,889) $ 3,616 $ (3,290) $ (2,656) $ 2,275 $ (2,528) $ 6,186 $ 8,063 $ 13,996
Earnings per share:

Basic $ 0.11 $ (0.27) $ 0.20 $ (0.18) $ (0.15) $ 0.13 $ (0.14) $ 0.34 $ 0.45 $ 0.77
Diluted $ 0.10 $ (0.27) $ 0.20 $ (0.18) $ (0.15) $ 0.12 $ (0.14) $ 0.33 $ 0.42 $ 0.74
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To The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
The Pantry, Inc.
Sanford, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets of The Pantry, Inc. (“The Pantry”) and subsidiaries as of
September 27, 2001 and September 28, 2000, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, 
and cash f lows for each of the three years in the period ended
September 27, 2001. These financial statements are the respon-
sibility of The Pantry’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
The Pantry, Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 27, 2001 
and September 28, 2000, and the results of their operations 
and their cash f lows for each of the three years in the period
ended September 27, 2001 in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Raleigh, North Carolina
November 13, 2001

Independent Auditors’ ReportI N D E P E N D E N T  A U D I T O R S ’  R E P O R T

(a) Market Information—We have only one class of common
equity, our common stock, $.01 par value per share. Our com-
mon stock represents our only voting securities. There are
18,107,597 shares of common stock issued and outstanding as 
of December 12, 2001. Our common stock is traded on The
Nasdaq National Market� under the symbol “PTRY.” The fol-
lowing table sets forth for each fiscal quarter the high and low
sale prices per share of our common stock over the last two 
fiscal years as reported on The Nasdaq National Market through
September 27, 2001.

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 2001 2000

Quarter High Low High Low

First 13.500 7.875 15.125 7.125
Second 11.500 8.375 16.313 7.000
Third 9.375 6.000 11.500 7.125
Fourth 10.250 6.550 13.063 9.000

(b) Holders—As of December 12, 2001, there were 59 holders
of record of our common stock.

(c) Dividends—During the last two fiscal years, we have not
paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We intend to
retain earnings to support operations, to reduce debt and to
finance expansion and do not intend to pay cash dividends on
our common stock for the foreseeable future. The payment of
cash dividends in the future will depend upon our ability to
remove certain loan restrictions and other factors such as our
earnings, operations, capital requirements, financial condition
and other factors deemed relevant by our Board of Directors.
The payment of any cash dividends is prohibited under restric-
tions contained in the indentures relating to the senior subordi-
nated notes and our senior credit facility. See “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources” and “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 5—Long-Term Debt.”

Shareholder MattersM A R K E T  F O R  O U R  C O M M O N  E Q U I T Y  A N D  R E L AT E D  S H A R E H O L D E R  M AT T E R S
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Sanford, North Carolina 27330
Phone: 919-774-6700
Fax: 919-774-3329

Transfer Agent
First Union National Bank
Corporate Trust Division
Charlotte, North Carolina

Independent Accountants
Deloitte & Touche LLP
Raleigh, North Carolina

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting of stockholders will be held 
on Tuesday, March 26, 2002 at 10:00 AM Eastern 
Standard Time at the Sheraton Imperial Hotel, 
4700 Emperor Boulevard, I-40 at Exit 282 
(Page Road), Durham, North Carolina 27730 
(approximately 3 miles from RDU airport)

Corporate InformationC O R P O R AT E  I N F O R M AT I O N
D

es
ig

ne
d 

by
 C

ur
ra

n 
&

 C
on

no
rs

, 
In

c.
/ 

w
w

w
.c

ur
ra

n-
co

nn
or

s.c
om

http://www.curran-connors.com
http://www.thepantry.com


The Pantry, Inc.
1801 Douglas Drive

Sanford, North Carolina 27330
Phone: 919-774-6700

Fax: 919-774-3329

The Pantry, Inc. has some stores

tied to nearby colleges. This is a

Gainesville, Florida location named

Campus Mobil�, which ref lects the

University of Florida colors.

�Registered trademark of Exxon Mobil Corporation


